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Strategic Goals 

 We will offer the right care and support, from the right people at the 
right time and in the right way. 
 

 We will be an open and harmonious team in an environment where 
people feel proud, empowered, valued and understood. 

 

 We will have community trust, confidence and understanding, and work 
in partnership to serve community needs. 
 

 We will have respectful, collaborative and functional relationships with 
our doctors with an aligned sense of purpose and direction. 
 

 We will deliver our patient, community, staff and doctors’ objectives in 
a financially sustainable way. 
 

 We will have the right systems and processes to support our business 
objectives. 
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In accordance with the Financial Management Act 1994, we are pleased to present the report of operations for 
Kyneton District Health for the year ending 30 June, 2018. 

This past year has been another strong year for Kyneton District Health as we build on our successes and 
achievements of recent years. In October 2017, KDH was announced as the Premier’s Small Health Service of 
the Year in the Victorian Public Healthcare Awards. We were immensely proud to be recognised for our 
ongoing commitment and dedication to our community and thrilled to be awarded one of healthcare’s most 
prestigious accolades.  

Over the last two years we have developed new programs with strong links to our current hospital and 
community services.  

Our Treehouse program supports people who are living at home with any stage of dementia, or other conditions 
that may impact on their quality of life.  It is a meeting place for people to socialise and take part in activities 
that promote independence and wellbeing, while providing carers with some time out, with additional support 
available.  The program continues to thrive with a steady rise in referrals and increased demand resulting in an 
expansion of service to three days a week.   The Treehouse coordinators have given presentations at 
International and National forums, including the World Congress on Alzheimer’s and Dementia in Japan, 
confirming our forward thinking approach to healthcare is meeting a global health need.  

The Treehouse has also forged a link with KDH’s newly launched Healthy Mind and Movement (HMM): a 
strength, resistance and balance program that commenced in May 2018. The Treehouse and HMM work 
alongside one another which allow participants to move between programs, ensuring they receive the right care 
and service whilst remaining at home. 

Our surgical capacity continues to grow as a result of our success in four of the sixteen applications submitted to 
the Department of Health and Human Services Regional Health Infrastructure Fund scheme. We purchased an 
image intensifier, operating table, steam steriliser and instrument washer disinfector with the $403,080 
allocated. These purchases have allowed us to replace ageing equipment and ensure compliance with sterilising 
standards. We are now able to cater for a greater range of appropriate low risk surgical specialities including the 
provision of a laparoscopic cholecystectomy (key hole removal of the gall bladder). In the last year, more than 
550 patients have had surgical procedures at KDH.  

KDH is committed to keeping our workforce safe as they support their local community. We recognised the risk 
of occupational violence (particularly in Urgent Care Centre) and commissioned a review by an OH&S 
consultant in 2016. This review framed a successful bid for funding to complete significant building and 
security works. These works were carried out in May/June 2018 and have boosted hospital and staff security 
through enhanced visibility and building two secure areas: triage and a safe room for staff in the event of an 
incident. Additional duress alarms and enhanced CCTV coverage and monitoring have also bolstered staff 
safety along with new security doors at the hospital entrance which prevent access to the main hospital after 
hours. 

We formalised our oncology service at KDH in October 2017, working with Bendigo Health and Peter 
MacCallum Cancer Centre. We are now able to offer a meaningful service to patients with cancer who can 
attend review appointments and receive treatment with medical and radiation oncologists at KDH, saving them 
travel to metropolitan cancer centres.   

As part of the Greener Government Buildings Project, we were successful in our application for a no-interest 
loan to install 330 solar panels on our building. We have a long-term commitment to sustainability and the 
panels are expected to significantly reduce our energy bills. 

Board President and Chief Executive Officer Review 
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Our ongoing collaboration with local service providers was formalised this year with the development of the 
shire-wide Health and Wellbeing Plan for the community. We continue a close partnership with Hepburn 
Health. Maree Cuddihy continues as joint-Chief Executive Officer of both agencies.  

As part of our Best Care Quality Framework, we continue to check that our services are Connected and Right, 
as well as being Personal and Safe. Our Clinical Governance Dashboard provides a visual indicator of 
performance using simple traffic light indicators. We have implemented CAMMS, integrated planning and 
analysis management software, to monitor clinical performance and how it aligns with our strategic plan. After 
an intensive period of integration, we expect to have meaningful data in the second half of 2018 that will build 
our capacity to monitor clinical performance. 

As we look to the future of Kyneton District Health, our Board and Executive embark upon a series of strategic 
planning days to focus on the next stage of KDH’s journey. We will critically appraise our strategic possibilities 
in discussions with our Board, staff, Visiting Medical Officers, consumer representatives, and the Hepburn 
Board and Management. 

The Board and Executive are immensely proud of the daily achievements of our staff - from the person who first 
greets patients, to the surgeons, GPs, nurses, allied health, hospitality and behind the scenes administrative staff 
- their expertise and dedication enable us to provide our community with safe, high quality, person-centred care. 
Our sincere thanks to all our staff for their passion and commitment to their role.   

 
 

 

 

  
Maree Cuddihy, Chief Executive Officer Peter Matthews, Board President 

16/8/18 
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It has been another very busy and exciting year for the clinical services at KDH.  

We are thrilled that the great work undertaken at KDH is being recognised far and wide and the profile and 
reputation of our service is becoming very highly regarded, indeed.  

Our Acute team are always busy providing inpatient care, maternity services, palliative care, dialysis treatment 
and attending to people presenting to the Urgent Care Centre.  Urgent care attendances have increased by 8-9 % 
each year for the last three years and this year we have seen nearly 3,500 people.  Three of our nurses have 
completed Advanced Nursing training and achieved RIPERN endorsement which enables them to assess and 
manage many of the patients presenting to Urgent Care relatively independently.  Five more nurses are currently 
studying for the same qualification.  

The support of our GPs is very much appreciated and, together, the doctors, nurses and allied health team 
provide a tremendous service to our inpatients and urgent care presenters. Patient feedback confirms this, with 
patient satisfaction consistently rating KDH at 98-100%.  

It is not just Urgent Care which is busier. Overall medical and surgical activity continues to increase also.  This 
year we will treat over 2,700 patients, which is a 13% increase on last year.  Over 550 patients had surgical 
procedures and nearly 1,000 had day procedures or treatment such as colonoscopy, drug infusions or blood 
transfusions.   

The Healthy Mind and Movement Program is a brand new ambulatory health service launched by KDH this 
year.  Individual programs support (particularly older) community members to build exercise endurance and 
general fitness and improve overall independence and wellbeing.  We work closely with local health and 
community services to ensure participants receive the right program based on their current level of fitness and 
independence.  The new Program has been enthusiastically welcomed by local services such as physiotherapists, 
community health services and rehabilitation providers, who have unanimously confirmed that our Program fills 
the gap between acute hospital care or rehabilitation and ongoing maintenance of fitness and activity at home.  

Responding to the need for elective surgery close to home was the impetus for KDH to actively engage with 
Bendigo Health this year to support the Sub-regional Elective Surgery Initiative (SESI).  Under this initiative we 
have supported over 50 additional patients to have their surgery locally.  Increases in our surgical work 
ultimately strengthen our capacity and supports our acute services.  

Along with other local hospitals, KDH has a shared desire and commitment to continuing to provide safe and 
sustainable maternity services to our respective communities and, ultimately, to support increased birth 
numbers. We have recently initiated a conversation with neighbouring services to explore how, together we 
might collaborate on an innovative regional obstetrics model.  

Another element of our plan to build capability is to enhance cancer services for our community. This year we 
worked with Bendigo Health and Peter MacCallum to provide Oncology Specialist Clinics at KDH. Our next 
steps are to establish an integrated regional approach to cancer care and treatment, and thus build the foundation 
for further cancer service development. We plan to build on the outpatient clinics and introduce a range of 
supportive ambulatory programs to wrap-around specialist consulting, including day Chemotherapy, 
Survivorship and Supportive Care services and Oncology Rehabilitation programs.   

Our clinical services continue to experience outstanding growth and success and it is a result of our dedicated 
nurses, doctors, pharmacists and allied health professionals that we have been able to achieve so much in the last 
year. Our sincere thanks to the team for their commitment and enthusiasm to our hospital, our patients and our 
community. 

Karen Laing 
Director of Nursing, Quality & Community Engagement 

Initiatives & Key Achievements 
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Kyneton District Health is a public hospital and is an incorporated body listed under Schedule 1 of the 
Health Services Act 1988.   

Kyneton District Health is governed by a Board of Management which directs all the affairs of the Health 
Service, subject to the Health Services Act 1998, other relevant Acts and Regulations and the Hospital By-
laws.   
 
The responsible Minister during the reporting period was the Minister for Health, The Hon. Jill Hennessy MP. 
 
The Board meets on a regular basis and is supported in its decision making by the Chief Executive Officer, 
Executive Staff and a number of sub-committees.  The Board comprises up to nine independent non-executive 
directors.  The Directors are elected for a term of up to three years, and may be re-appointed to serve for up to 
nine years. 
 
The Board’s role is to exercise governance in the achievement of Kyneton District Health’s objectives as 
outlined in the Strategic Plan and the Statement of Priorities. 
 
The objectives of the Board are: 

 
 Promote health and wellbeing and provide high quality health services to the community which aim to 

meet our communities needs effectively and efficiently; 
 

 Integrate care as needed across service boundaries in order to achieve continuity of care and promote 
the most appropriate level of care to meet the needs of individuals; 
 

 Aim for improvements in individual health outcomes and population health status by allocating 
resources according to best practice health care approaches; 
 

 Maintain a service that reflects and delivers quality clinical and corporate governance; 
 

 Ensure that mechanisms are available to inform consumers to protect their rights and to facilitate 
consultation with the community. 
 

 Carry out any other activities that may be conveniently carried out in connection with the operation of 
KDH or to make the operations more efficient.  

Report of Operations 
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Rhyl Gould 
Rhyl joined the Board in 2013.  Rhyl has more than 
35 years’ experience in public health, working 
initially in clinical roles and the last 15 years working 
in management roles. She brings excellent health 
experience, along with strong strategic planning skills, 
and a broad health policy context to the Board.  In the 
last few years Rhyl has been a Director of her own 
consultancy providing strategic advice to health 
organisations. Rhyl is a member of a number of 
community organisations, covering local and 
statewide issues. She has qualifications in 
Occupational Therapy, Arts ,and a Masters in Health 
Management. Rhyl has chaired the Consumer and 
Community Advisory Committee for four years and 
brings a community perspective to the Board, with her 
capacity to reflect community views. 

Dr Marcus Kennedy 

Dr Kennedy joined the Board in 2013. He is the 
Director of Adult Retrieval Victoria which is part 
of Ambulance Victoria and provides Statewide 
clinical coordination, retrieval and critical care 
services. 
Prior to his current role, Dr Kennedy held 
Directorial positions in Emergency Medicine at 
The Royal Melbourne Hospital, Angliss Hospital 
and Eastern Health. 
Dr Kennedy has enhanced the Board’s expertise 
with his management, medical, clinical risk and 
clinical governance knowledge. 

The Hon. Gerald Ashman 
Vice President 
 
The Hon. Gerald Ashman joined the Board in 
2014 and brings executive management and 
corporate communication skills to the board. He 
has served on many parliamentary committees 
(1980 – 90’s) during his membership of the 
Legislative Council of Victoria and seats for 
Boronia and Koonung Province.   Gerald has 
many memberships and interests in the local 
community. 

Peter Matthews 
Board President  

Peter joined the Board in 2013. He has worked in 
the creative arts as an artist, manager, consultant 
and academic for over 35 years, formerly at the 
Federation University. As a dancer and 
choreographer he worked throughout Australia 
and internationally. He has undertaken 
consultancy work for arts organisations, 
universities and government agencies. Peter has 
20 years’ experience on Boards and committees; 
many as Chair. He holds qualifications in 
Engineering, Performing Arts and Management. 
The University of Ballarat granted Peter the title 
of Emeritus Professor in February 2013. 

 

Steven Wlazly 
Treasurer 
 
Steven was appointed to the Board in July 2015.  
Steven is a business and finance executive with 20 
years leadership experience in health, emergency 
services and government. He contributes to the 
Board’s decision making in the fields of finance, 
audit and risk management. Steven is a CPA with 
post graduate studies in Public Health. 

Board Directors for 2017/18 

Ann Jorgensen 
 
Ann also joined the Board in 2016.  Ann is an 
experienced public interest lawyer and consumer 
representative. Ann is the Principal Solicitor at the 
Mental Health Legal Centre, a community legal 
centre that assists people who have legal problems 
that are connected with their mental health issues.  
 
Ann has been a member of the Consultative Council 
on Obstetric and Paediatric Mortality and Morbidity 
(CCOPMM) since 2012 and has recently been 
appointed to the Victorian Clinical Council.  
 
Ann holds a B.A (Government) and a LLB(Hons) 
and is currently completing a Master of Laws 
specialising in health and medical law at the 
University of Melbourne. 
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Jayne Howley 
 
Jayne lives locally with her family and joined 
the Board in 2011. She holds a Bachelor of Arts 
(History & Politics) and a Master of 
Communications (PR). She has worked across 
the health sector including the UK National 
Health Service and the Department of Health 
and Human Services (Victoria).  In 2014 she 
was awarded the Victorian Women’s 
Governance Scholarship and graduated from the 
Australian Institute of Company Directors 
course. 
 

Michael Wildenauer 
 
Michael was appointed to the Board in July, 
2015.  
He has more than 20 years’ experience in 
technology leadership positions in both the 
private and public sectors, in Australia, the US, 
UK and Europe, and has served on the Alfred 
Health Human Research Ethics Committee on the 
Drugs and Interventions panel. He is currently a 
Professor of Practice at the Latrobe Business 
School teaching in IT ethics and corporate 
governance.  
Michael holds B.Sc.(Math.Sc.) and MBA 
(Computing) degrees, and is also currently 
undertaking research in corporate governance for 
a doctorate at Victoria Law School. 

Bronwyn Malignaggi 
 
Bronwyn joined the Board in 2016.  Bronwyn is a 
business executive with sound experience in 
financial services and oil & energy sectors; 
specialising in IT governance, audit and risk 
committees and establishing /transforming large 
functional organisations particularly in a shared 
services structure.  
Bronwyn contributes to Board decision making and 
problem solving through her skills gained from the 
various senior committees she has sat on.  
Bronwyn has proven operational leadership abilities 
gained from managing large multijurisdictional 
teams within a complex global environment and is 
thus aware of the risks and governance issues 
boards face today.  

 

Danielle Romanes 
 
Danielle joined the Board in 2016.   Danielle is a 
health economist with expertise in clinical 
governance, safety and quality, health 
information and analytics.   She also 
has experience managing community service 
organisations. 
 
Danielle joined the Board to gain experience in 
hospital governance and make a positive 
contribution to safety and quality of care. 

Felicity Topp 
 
Felicity is the Chief Executive of Peninsula 
Health and joined the Board in 2017. Felicity is 
an experienced health executive with a clinical 
background in nursing. Most recently Felicity 
worked at the Peter MacCallum Cancer Centre 
where she was the Deputy Chief Executive, and 
prior to that the Chief Operating Officer.  She 
has also held senior roles at Barwon Health and 
the Royal Melbourne Hospital, as well senior 
nursing roles in Saudi Arabia.  
 
Felicity has a Masters of Public Health, 
Graduate Diploma of Health Counselling, 
Bachelor of Nursing Science and a Certificate in 
Critical Care Nursing. Felicity is on the Board of 
the Victorian Hospitals Industrial Association 
(VHIA) and the Committee for Greater 
Frankston. 

Robert Rothnie 
 
Robert was appointed to the Board in 2017 and 
is a member of the Board's Audit and Risk 
Subcommittee.  

Robert is currently the Director of Service 
Planning and Development at Western Health. 
He has previously held roles at the Victorian 
Healthcare Association and the Victorian Public 
Service. Robert holds a Master of Public Policy 
and Administration and a Bachelor of Arts with 
Honours in Political Science. 
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Kyneton District Health provides services to approximately 45,308 people within our primary 
catchment area. 

The Health Service offers a wide range of medical, nursing, and associated health care services to the 
community. 
 
Services Provided 
   Acute Medical and Surgical Services 
   Day Procedure Unit 
   Midwifery, Antenatal & Home Domiciliary Services 
   Childbirth Education Service 
   Breast feeding consultancy 
   Renal Dialysis Unit 
   Urgent Care Centre 
   Allied Health Services  - Physiotherapy 
    - Occupational Therapy 
    - Social Worker 
    - Allied Health Assistants 
 Community Nursing  - District Nursing Service 
   - Hospital in the Home 
        - Palliative Care 
    - Post Acute Care Services 
                                         - Home and Community Care (HACC) and HACC Response 
   Palliative Care and Respite 
 Transitional Care Program (2 bed-based and 2 home-based beds) 
 Treehouse Program (dementia and palliative care day service) 
 Healthy Mind and Movement (strength, resistance and balance program) 
 
On site facilities include: 
    One Operating Theatre and one procedure room 
     Radiology 
     Pathology 
  Pharmacy 
 
Services are available to all members of the community.   

About Us 

Board Committees 
 
Audit & Risk – S. Wlazly (Chair), G. Ashman,  M. Wildenauer, B. Malignaggi, G. Cameron, R. Rothnie  (all are 
independent members) 
 
Clinical Governance – Dr M. Kennedy (Chair), D. Romanes, J. Howley, A. Jorgensen, F. Topp, P. Matthews (ex 
officio)    Community Members – J. Hedstrom & J. Wood 
 
Clinical Credentialing – Dr M. Kennedy (Chair), D. Romanes, R. Gould 
 
Governance & Remuneration – M. Wildenauer (Chair),  A. Jorgsensen, P. Matthews, R. Gould, S. Wlazly 
 
Consumer and Community Advisory Committee –R Gould (Chair), B. Malignaggi,  J. Howley, G. Ashman,   
Consumer Representatives:  J. Hedstrom, G. Barrett,  J. Wood, A. Paterson, K. Hendry, J. Bourguignon, C. Gurner, 
 J. Mahoney 
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Organisational Structure as at 30th June, 2018 

CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER 
Ms Maree Cuddihy 

EXTERNAL SERVICE PROVIDERS 
‐ Bendigo Community Mental 

Health 
‐ Aust. Clinical Labs 
‐ Lake Imaging 
‐ Cobaw Community Health 
‐ BluePrint IT 
‐ Warella Engineering 

DIRECTOR OF NURSING, QUALITY AND 
COMMUNITY ENGAGEMENT 

DEPUTY CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER 
Ms Karen Laing 

DIRECTOR OF CORPORATE SERVICES 
Ms Brenda Rooney 

DIRECTOR OF MEDICINE 
Dr Peter Sloan 

SUPPORT SERVICES MANAGER 
Mr Howard Bradfield 

BOARD OF MANAGEMENT 
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  ACUTE SERVICES 

 
Ms Susan Whitfield 

PERIOPERATIVE SERVICES 
 

Ms Kristine Wyatt 

COMMUNITY NURSING 
 

Ms Alison Lowe 

PHARMACY 
 

Ms Diane Inglis 

CLINICAL SUPPORT NURSE 
 

Ms Michelle Clough 

SOCIAL WORKER 
 

Ms Kate Barlow 

QUALITY CO‐ORDINATOR 
 

Ms Caroline Kennedy 

INFECTION CONTROL 
 

Ms Robyn Freeman 

AFTER HOURS  
ADMINISTRATORS 

INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY 
 

Ms Jaynee Russell‐Clarke 

HEALTH INFORMATION 
 

Ms Jennifer Turnbull 

PEOPLE & CULTURE 
 

Tanya Hilgert 

ADMINISTRATION  FINANCE 

VISITING MEDICAL OFFICERS 

FOOD SERVICES  CLEANING & ENVIRONMENT  MAINTENANCE 

STORES / SUPPLY 

TREEHOUSE 
 

Ms Kathy Kirby 

HEALTHY MIND AND MOVEMENT 

 
Mr John Davis 

COMMUNICATIONS 

 
Ms Helen Edwards 
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Goals Action Deliverable Outcome 
A system geared to 
prevention as much as 
treatment 
 

Reduce statewide risks 
 

In partnership with Macedon 
Ranges Family Violence Network 
and Loddon Mallee Women’s 
Health, undertake the “Prevention 
of Violence Against Women – 
Organisational Assessment” and 
participate in initiatives to address 
gender inequality. 

Achieved 
Family Violence Prevention 
funding from Women’s Health 
Loddon Mallee (WHLM). $6K of 
this funding released to complete 
the Working for Gender Equity 
Project at Cobaw Community 
Health and KDH. Gender equity 
organisational assessment and 
training undertaken. 

Everyone understands 
their own health and 
risks 

Build healthy 
neighbourhoods 
 

Illness is detected and 
managed early 
 

Help people to stay 
healthy 
 

Add dental lists to the range of 
surgical services offered to ensure 
patients have access to timely and 
safe dental surgery. 

Achieved 
Dental lists scheduled as required 
by local dentist. 

Evaluate the extent to which the 
Treehouse program for people with 
a life limiting illness of moderate 
dementia enhances social inclusion 
for participants and wellbeing and 
resilience of carers. 

Achieved 
Initial evaluation complete. 
Presentation at international 
conference in Japan. Investigating 
opportunities for further research 
with National  Aging Research 
Institute (NARI) 

Healthy 
neighbourhoods and 
communities encourage 
healthy lifestyles 

Target health gaps Increase patient access to 
colonoscopy services by the 
National Bowel Cancer Screening 
Program to improve early detection 
and prevention of bowel cancer. 

Achieved 
Additional lists scheduled for 
Endoscopy.  Over 42 additional 
NBCS cases completed since July 
2017. 

Collaborate with Western Health to 
build on the whole of hospital 
model to identify and respond to 
family violence, including further 
training and education of staff, and 
screening of patients for early 
identification, assessment and 
referral. 

Achieved 
Distribution of funding from 
Western Health to KDH arranged. 
Proposal for use of funding 
submitted to Western Health, 
detailing work completed in last 
year and next steps planned to 
progressively roll out and embed 
whole-of-hospital model. 

Care is always there 
when people need it 
 

Plan and invest 
 
 

Improve access to specialist 
nursing care for patients attending 
the Urgent Care Centre with the 
training of additional Rural 
Isolated Practice Endorsed 
Registered Nurses.   

Achieved 
5 students currently undertaking 
Advanced Clinical Nursing studies 
with view to endorsement as 
RIPERNs.  This will take our 
RIPERN numbers to 8. 

More access to care in 
the home and 
community 

Unlock innovation 
 

  

People are connected to 
the full range of care 
and support they need 

Provide easier access 
 

Kyneton District Health will 
actively participate in the 
collaborative regional initiative to 
increase the delivery of safe, 
quality and sustainable health 
services to the communities of the 
Loddon Mallee region. 

Achieved 
KDH are actively supporting SESI 
initiative for sub-regional elective 
surgery (see below) and have 
Medical Oncology and Radiation 
Oncology specialist consulting 
commenced with view to 
providing range of cancer services 
locally (including Day Chemo) by 
2018/19. 

There is equal access to 
care 

Ensure fair access 
 

Increase the number of 
Ophthalmology; Ear, Nose and 
Throat; and General Surgery 
operating lists for the Macedon 
Ranges community to increase 
local access to surgery. 

Achieved 
Using additional funding provided 
in 2017/18 and SESI funding from 
Bendigo Health elective waiting 
lists, KDH has performed 197 
additional procedures. 

Department of Health and Human Services Strategic Priorities 
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Goals Action Deliverable Outcome 
  Partner with Castlemaine Health 

and Cobaw Community Health to 
provide local access to community 
rehabilitation / health 
independence programs for the 
people of the Macedon Ranges. 

Achieved 
Healthy Mind & Movement 
Program launched in early May, 
2018 with classes filling quickly.  
24 referrals accepted and 
commenced programs in first 3 
weeks.     

Target zero avoidable 
harm 
Healthcare that focusses 
on outcomes 
 
Patients and carers are 
active partners in care 
 
Care fits together 
around people’s needs 
 

Put quality first 
 
Join up care 
 
Partner with patients 
 
Strengthen the workforce 
 
Embed evidence 
 
Ensure equal care 

Review the Kyneton District 
Health Best Care Quality 
Framework and tools and work 
with staff to re-define what it 
means to provide Best Care with 
the aim of enhancing patient 
experience of our services 
 

Achieved 
Current quality initiatives based 
on VHES results and patient 
feedback include strategies to 
enhance discharge information 
provided to surgical patients and 
reminder to staff to seek consent 
for student’s participation in care.  
Initiatives arising from scanning 
of external learnings include 
provision of Improvement Science 
education for managers.  Proposed 
change projects aimed at 
improved patient experience will 
benefit from this education. 

 Develop and implement a 
plan to educate staff about 
obligations to report 
patient safety concerns 

Implement a Quality and Safety 
staff education program on 
identification and reporting of 
potential and actual patient safety 
risks by developing and 
introducing ”Good Catch” and 
‘Safety Catch Up’ initiatives. 

Achieved 
Tools such as template for 
reporting, staff education material, 
developed.  Launch of "KDH 
Good Catch" scheduled for July, 
2018. 

 Establish agreements to 
involve external specialists 
in clinical governance 
processes for each major 
area of activity (including 
mortality and morbidity 
review). 

Conduct a desktop review of 
surgical services to ensure clinical 
governance processes are robust 
and compliant with the Capability 
Framework of the organisation and 
the scope of practice of the 
credentialed specialists. An 
external specialist surgeon will be 
invited to review the data and 
asked to report on adherence to 
clinical governance obligations.   

Achieved 
Audit template developed with 
evidence against 10 National 
Standards and ACORN Standards 
provided to external reviewer. 
Report anticipated to be 
completed by August 2018, with 
Action Plan to be developed based 
on recommendations.   

 In partnership with 
consumers, identify three 
priority improvement 
areas using Victorian 
Healthcare Experience 
Survey data and establish 
an improvement plan for 
each.  These should be 
reviewed every six months 
to reflect new areas for 
improvement in patient 
experience. 

In partnership with Consumer and 
Community Advisory Committee, 
Kyneton District Health will use 
information from Victorian Health 
Experience Survey, internal 
feedback and complaints data to 
improve our patient’s experience.  

Our	focus	will	be	provision	of	
discharge	information,	providing	
opportunities	to	discuss	worries	
or	fears,	evaluation	of	the	
hospital	food	services,	and	
developing	plans	to	improve	
performance	in	these	areas 

Achieved 
See strategies cited above under 
"Better Care", plus change ideas 
proposed by managers using 
Improvement Science - which 
include further evaluation and 
research for Treehouse dementia 
program, review of Healthy Food 
Options for patients and visitors, 
development of project plan for 
introduction of Day 
Chemotherapy service and 
establish link with Eye & Ear 
Hospital via tele-medicine for 
UCC presentations. 

   

Department of Health and Human Services Strategic Priorities 
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Occupational violence statistics 2017-18 

1. Workcover accepted claims with an occupational violence cause per 100 FTE 0 

2. Number of accepted Workcover claims with lost time injury with an occupational 
violence cause per 1,000,000 hours worked. 

0 

3. Number of occupational violence incidents reported 6 

4. Number of occupational violence incidents reported per 100 FTE 8.06 

5. Percentage of occupational violence incidents resulting in a staff injury, illness or 
condition 

0 

 

 

 

 

 2018 
$000 

2017 
$000 

2016 
$000 

2015 
$000 

2014 
$000 

 
Total Revenue 
Total Expenses 
Other operating flows included in the Net Results 
Operating Result 
 
Total Assets 
Total Liabilities 
Net Assets 
 
Total Equity 

 
13,884 
14,242 

0 
468 

 
28,388 

4,912 
23,476 

 
23,476

 
12,767 
12,664 

(30) 
726 

 
27,303 

3,988 
23,315 

 
23,315

 
11,261 
12,213 

(57) 
99 

 
26,905 

4,145 
22,760 

 
22,760 

 
11,908 
12,283 

(112) 
 (281) 

 
28,007 

4,671 
23,336 

 
23,336 

 
11,981 
12,727 

4,337 
 (439) 

 
23,052 

4,935 
18,117 

 
18,117

The Operating result for 2017/18 is $467,749.  This is the amount of revenue left over after accounting for all 
the expenses necessary to keep the health service running.   These include costs of goods, utilities and wages.  
This is the way we are monitored in the Statement of Priorities and also referred to as the Net Result before 
capital and specific items.      

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Occupational Violence 

Financial Summary 
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Financial Sustainability 

Key performance indicator Target Actual 

Operating result ($m) 0.00 0.47 

Trade creditors 60 days 46.72 days 

Patient fee debtors 60 days 58.21 days 

Adjusted current asset ratio  0.7 1.06 

Number of days with available cash 14 days 71.53 days 

Asset Management   

Asset management plan Full compliance Full compliance 

Quality & Safety 

Key performance indicator Target Actual 

Compliance with NSQHS Standards accreditation Full compliance  Full Compliance 

Cleaning standards  Full compliance Full Compliance 

Compliance with the Hand Hygiene Australia program 80% 93.7% 

Percentage of healthcare workers immunised for influenza 75% 94.2% 

Patient experience and outcomes performance 

Key performance indicator Target Actual 

Victorian Healthcare Experience Survey  - data submission Full compliance  Achieved 

Victorian Healthcare Experience Survey – patient experience Q1 95% positive experience 100% 

Victorian Healthcare Experience Survey – patient experience Q2 95% positive experience 99% 

Victorian Healthcare Experience Survey – patient experience Q3 95% positive experience 97% 

Victorian Healthcare Experience Survey – Discharge care Q1 75% very positive response 94% 

Victorian Healthcare Experience Survey – Discharge care Q2 75% very positive response 90% 

Victorian Healthcare Experience Survey – Discharge care Q3 75% very positive response 94% 

Victorian Healthcare Experience Survey – perception of 
cleanliness Q1 

70% very positive response 92.4% 

Victorian Healthcare Experience Survey – perception of 
cleanliness Q1 

70% very positive response 93.3% 

Victorian Healthcare Experience Survey – perception of 
cleanliness Q1 

70% very positive response 94.1% 

Performance Priorities 
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Governance, leadership and culture performance 

Key performance indicator – People Matter Survey Target Actual 

Percentage of staff with a positive response to safety culture questions 80% 83% 

Patient care errors are handled appropriately in my work areas 80% 90% 

This health service does a good job of training new and existing staff 80% 79% 

I am encouraged by my colleagues to report any patient safety concerns I may have 80% 90% 

The culture in my work area makes it easy to learn from the errors of others 80% 81% 

Trainees in my discipline are adequately supervised 80% 76% 

My suggestions about patient safety would be acted upon if I expressed them to my Manager 80% 91% 

Management is driving us to be a safety-centred organisation 80% 83% 

I would recommend a friend or relative to be treated as a patient here 80% 91% 

 
 

Activity and Funding 
 

Funding type 
Activity 

(hours of service)
Budget ($'000) 

Small Rural 

Small Rural Acute 203 $9,537 

Small Rural HACC 957 $91 

Health Workforce  $24 

Other specified funding  $329 

Total Funding $9,981 

 

Information and Communication Technology (ICT) Expenditure 
 
The total ICT expenditure incurred during 2017/18 is $515,184 (excluding GST) with the details shown below. 

   

Business As Usual (BAU) 
ICT expenditure 
 
(Total) 
(excluding GST) 

Non-Business As Usual (non-BAU) 
ICT expenditure 
 
(Total=Operational expenditure and 
Capital Expenditure) 
(excluding GST) 

Operational 
expenditure 
(excluding GST) 

Capital expenditure 
(excluding GST) 

$480,784 
$34,400 
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Data Integrity 
 

I, Maree Cuddihy, certify that Kyneton District Health has put in place appropriate internal controls and 
processes to ensure that reporting data accurately reflects actual performance.   Kyneton District Health 
has critically reviewed these processes during the year. 

 
 
 
 

Maree Cuddihy,  
Chief Executive Officer 

 
 

Conflict of Interest 
 
I, Maree Cuddihy, certify that Kyneton District Health has put in place appropriate internal controls and 
processes to ensure that it has complied with the requirements of hospital circular 07/2017 Compliance 
reporting in health portfolio entities (Revised) and has implemented a ‘Conflict of Interest’ policy 
consistent with the minimum accountabilities required by the VPSC. Declaration of private interest forms 
have been completed by all executive staff within Kyneton District Health and members of the board, and 
all declared conflicts have been addressed and are being managed. Conflict of interest is a standard 
agenda item for declaration and documenting at each executive board meeting.  
 

 
 

Maree Cuddihy,  
Chief Executive Officer 

 

Financial Management Compliance Attestation  
 

I, Peter Matthews on behalf of the Responsible Body, certify that Kyneton District Health has complied 
with the applicable Standing Directions of the Minister for Finance under the Financial Management Act 
1994 and Instructions.  
 
 
 

Peter Matthews,  
Board Chair 

 
 
 

Kyneton District Health employment policy has been established to ensure that there are appropriate 
practices and systems in place to assist in selecting the best possible person for each vacancy that occurs 
in a manner that is fair, equitable, transparent, efficient and effective. 

These principles are based on: 
    Equity        Merit Selection 
    Fairness        Integrity 
    Impartiality       Openness 

Workforce Data 
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 JUNE 

Current Month FTE 
JUNE 

YTD FTE Labour Category 

 2018 2017 2018 2017 

Nursing 47.55 48.68 45.80 46.37 

Administration and Clerical 14.18 13.15 13.74 13.84 
Hotel and Allied Services 10.62 11.15 11.60 12.38 

Medical Officers 0.41 0.41 0.41 0.41 

Ancillary staff (Allied Health) 3.19 2.70 2.90 2.73 

TOTAL 75.95 76.09 74.45 75.73 
 

Consultancies 
In 2017/18, there were 2 consultancies where the total fees payable to the consultants was less than 
$10,000.  The total expenditure incurred during 2017/18 in relation to these consultancies was $4,500.   

 

There were 2 consultancies where the total fees payable to the consultants were $10,000 or greater as 
follows: 

 

Paxton      Aspex 
Due Diligence     Clinical Service Plan 
Total fee $20,155     Fee $43,570 (=our portion less recovered portion) 
Start Date Nov-17    Start Date Jul-17 
End Date Dec-17     End Date Feb-18 
Future Expenditure Nil    Future Expenditure: Nil 
 

Expenditure on Government Advertising 
Kyneton District Health had no media buy of $150,000 or greater during the year ended 30th June, 2018. 

 
Events Subsequent to Balance Date 
There has been no event subsequent to balance date that may have a significant effect on the operations 
of the entity in subsequent years. 
 

Disclosure of Ex-Gratia Expenses 
There have been no ex-gratia expenses received or made by KDH for the year ended 30th June, 2018. 

 
Occupational Health and Safety 
 
Kyneton District Health is committed to providing a safe work environment for all members of the 
workforce, volunteers, contractors and the public. Kyneton District Health allocates resources to the 
management of occupational health and safety by implementing a ‘Safety First’ approach. Kyneton 
District Health complies with the Occupational Health and Safety (OH&S) Act 2004 and the 
Occupational Health and Safety (OH&S) Regulations 2017 and all relevant standards and codes of 
practice. 
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Occupational Health and Safety Statistics 2015-16 2016-17 2017-18 
Number of reported hazards/incidents for the year per 100 FTE 12.4 15.8 26.7 
Number of lost time standard claims for the year per 100 FTE 1.5 1.6 4.5 
Average cost per claim for the year (including payments to date 
and an estimate of outstanding claim costs as advised by 
WorkSafe) 

$807.87 $2,170.03 $18,555.09 

 
The Occupational Health and Safety Committee meet on a bi-monthly basis. The committee is an integral 
part of health service’s OH&S Management System maintaining an active role in policy development and 
review, incident monitoring and equipment use and purchasing. 

 
Environmental Performance 
Kyneton District Health strives to continually improve the health of the people in our community by 
endeavouring to provide health care in an environmentally sound and sustainable manner.   We commit to 
continual improvement in energy use to reduce our carbon footprint.  
 
We progressively establish and maintain environmental standards in compliance with all applicable 
regulations and standards. 
 
The Environmental Green Group (EGG) ensures that KDH manages its operations in a manner that is 
protective of the environment and human health, applying sustainability principles to achieve optimal 
environmental practices consistent with clinical excellence, organisation goals in a fiscally responsive 
manner.  This committee oversees the implementation and monitoring of the Environmental 
Sustainability Plan. 
 
We continually seek new and innovative ways to meet environmental goals through conservation, 
reduction, reuse and recycling programs, and through partnering with others in the community, to 
safeguard the environment.   
 
This year we have implemented a new waste management system for easier recycling of goods and 
provided all our staff with a keep cup, which is a travel mug for coffee/tea to replace paper disposable 
cups. 
 

 

Building Act 1993 
KDH complies with all legislation required under the Building Act 1993.  There has been no major 
maintenance undertaken during the financial year. 
 
Essential Services Maintenance Requirements have been maintained as per the occupancy permit No. 
9085F11 and the report displayed in a prominent location within the Health Service. 
 

Freedom of Information Act 1982 
The Freedom of Information Act operates to allow access to information held by public bodies under 
certain conditions.  Requests at KDH are handled in accordance with the provision of that law. 
 
During the 2017/2018 financial year the Health Service received 20 requests and collected $940.40 in 
fees.   The Freedom of Information Officer is the Chief Executive Officer, Maree Cuddihy. 
 

Legislation 
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Protected Disclosure Act 2012 
The Protected Disclosure Act 2012 (Vic) is to protect people against detrimental action that might be 
taken against them in reprisal for making a protected disclosure or cooperating in an investigation into a 
protected disclosure complaint. There were no disclosures made for the 2017/18 financial year. 

 
Carers Recognition Act 2012 
KDH takes all practicable measures to comply with the Carers Recognition Act 2012. 
 
 

Competitive Neutrality 
Any negotiations entered into have been in line with the Government’s policy on National Competition as 
outlined in the Guide to Implementing Competitively Neutral Pricing Principles. 
 
 

Victorian Industry Participation Policy Disclosure 
Kyneton District Health let no contracts of $3 million or over in 2017/18 and therefore no Victorian 
Industry Participation Policy disclosure is required. 
 

Safe Patient Care Act 2015 
Kyneton District Health has no matters to report in relation to its obligations under section 40 of the Safe 
Patient Care Act 2015 
 
 

Attestation on Compliance with Health Purchasing 
Victoria (HPV) Health Purchasing Policies 
 
I, Maree Cuddihy, certify that the Kyneton District Health has in place appropriate internal controls and 
processes to ensure that it has complied with all requirements set out in the HPV Health Purchasing 
Policies including mandatory HVP collective agreements as required by the Health Services Act 1988 
(Vic) and has critically reviewed these controls and processes during the year. 
 
 
 

Maree Cuddihy,  
Chief Executive Officer 
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The Annual Report of the Kyneton District Health is prepared in accordance with all relevant Victorian 
legislation.  This index has been prepared to facilitate identification of the Department’s compliance with 
statutory disclosure requirements. 
 

Legislation Requirement Page Reference

Ministerial Directions – Report of Operations 

Charter and purpose 

FRD 22H Manner of establishment and the relevant Ministers 8

FRD 22H Purpose, functions, powers and duties  8

FRD 22H Initiatives and key achievements 7

FRD 22H Nature and range of services provided 11

 

Management and structure 

FRD 22H Organisational structure  12-13

Financial and other information 

FRD 10A Disclosure index 23-24

FRD 11A Disclosure of ex-gratia expenses 20

FRD 21C Responsible person and executive officer disclosures 5

FRD 22H 
FRD 22H 

Application and operation of Protected Disclosure 2012 
Application and operation of Carers Recognition Act 2012 

21
21

FRD 22H Application and operation of Freedom of Information Act 1982  21

FRD 22H Compliance with building and maintenance provisions of Building Act 1993 21

FRD 22H Details of consultancies over $10,000  20

FRD 22H Details of consultancies under $10,000  20

FRD 22H Employment and conduct principles 19

FDH 22H Information and Communication Technology Expenditure 18

FRD 22H Major changes or factors affecting performance  Financials

FRD 22H Occupational health and safety 20

FRD 22H Operational and budgetary objectives and performance against objectives  16

FRD 22H Summary of the entity’s environmental performance 21

FRD 22H Significant changes in financial position during the year  16

FRD 22H Statement on National Competition Policy  22

FRD 22H Subsequent events 20

FRD 22H Summary of the financial results for the year  16

FRD 22H Additional information available on request 25

FRD 22H Workforce Data Disclosures including a statement on the application of 
employment and conduct principles 

19

FRD 25C Victorian Industry Participation Policy disclosures 22

FRD 29B Workforce Data disclosures 19

Disclosure Index 
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Legislation Requirement Page Reference

FRD 103F Non-Financial Physical Assets 

FRD 110A Cash flow Statements 

FRD 112D Defined Benefit Superannuation Obligations 

SD 5.2.3 Declaration in report of operations 

Other requirements under Standing Directions 5.2
SD 5.2.2 Declaration in financial statements 

SD 5.2.1(a) Compliance with Australian accounting standards and other authoritative 
pronouncements 

5

SD 5.2.1(a) Compliance with Ministerial Directions 19

  

Legislation 

Freedom of Information Act 1982 21

Protected Disclosure Act 2012 21

Carers Recognition Act 2012  21

Victorian Industry Participation Policy Act 2003 22

Building Act 1993 21

Financial Management Act 1994 Financials

Safe Patient Care Act 2015 22

 
 
  

Disclosure Index 
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Consistent with FRD 22H (Section 6.19)  the items listed below have been retained by Kyneton District 
Health  and are available to the relevant Ministers, Members of Parliament and the public on request 
(subject to the freedom of information requirements, if applicable): 
 

(a) Declarations of pecuniary interest have been duly completed by all relevant officers; 

(b) Details of shares held by senior officers as nominee or held beneficially; 

(c) Details of publications produced by the entity about itself, and how these can be obtained; 

(d) Details of changes in prices, fees, charges, rates and levies charged by the Health Service; 

(e) Details of any major external reviews carried out on the Health Service; 

(f) Details of major research and development activities undertaken by the Health Service that are not 
otherwise covered either in the Report of Operations or in a document that contains the financial 
statements and Report of Operations; 

(g) Details of overseas visits undertaken including a summary of the objectives and outcomes of each 
visit; 

(h) Details of major promotional, public relations and marketing activities undertaken by the Health 
Service to develop community awareness of the Health Service and its services; 

(i) Details of assessments and measures undertaken to improve the occupational health and safety of 
employees; 

(j) General statement on industrial relations within the Health Service and details of time lost through 
industrial accidents and disputes, which is not otherwise detailed in the Report of Operations;  

(k) A list of major committees sponsored by the Health Service, the purposes of each committee and 
the extent to which those purposes have been achieved; 

(l) Details of all consultancies and contractors including consultants/contractors engaged, services 
provided, and expenditure committed for each engagement. 

Additional Information 

Note:  This document complies with FRD 30D Standard requirements for the design and print of annual 

reports. It prescribes the design and print specifications for annual reports to ensure consistency, cost 

minimisation and low environmental impact.  The FRD applies to all Health Services defined as either a 

public body or a department under section 3 of the FMA, which includes all public Health Services and 

public hospitals.  
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Independent Auditor’s Report 

To the Board of Kyneton District Health Service 

Opinion I have audited the financial report of Kyneton District Health Service (the health service) 

which comprises the: 

• balance sheet as at 30 June 2018 

• comprehensive operating statement for the year then ended 

• statement of changes in equity for the year then ended 

• cash flow statement for the year then ended 

• notes to the financial statements, including significant accounting policies 

• board member's, accounting officer's and chief finance & accounting officer's 

declaration. 

In my opinion the financial report presents fairly, in all material respects, the financial 

position of the health service as at 30 June 2018 and their financial performance and cash 

flows for the year then ended in accordance with the financial reporting requirements of 

Part 7 of the Financial Management Act 1994 and applicable Australian Accounting 

Standards.   

Basis for 

Opinion 

I have conducted my audit in accordance with the Audit Act 1994 which incorporates the 

Australian Auditing Standards. I further describe my responsibilities under that Act and 

those standards in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Report section 

of my report.  

My independence is established by the Constitution Act 1975. My staff and I are 

independent of the health service in accordance with the ethical requirements of the 

Accounting Professional and Ethical Standards Board’s APES 110 Code of Ethics for 

Professional Accountants (the Code) that are relevant to my audit of the financial report in 

Victoria. My staff and I have also fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance 

with the Code. 

I believe that the audit evidence I have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a 

basis for my opinion. 

Board’s 

responsibilities 

for the 

financial 

report 

The Board of the health service is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of 

the financial report in accordance with Australian Accounting Standards and the Financial 

Management Act 1994, and for such internal control as the Board determines is necessary 

to enable the preparation and fair presentation of a financial report that is free from 

material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

In preparing the financial report, the Board is responsible for assessing the health service’s 

ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going 

concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless it is inappropriate to do so. 
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Auditor’s 

responsibilities 

for the audit 

of the financial 

report 

As required by the Audit Act 1994, my responsibility is to express an opinion on the financial 

report based on the audit. My objectives for the audit are to obtain reasonable assurance 

about whether the financial report as a whole is free from material misstatement, whether 

due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes my opinion. Reasonable 

assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in 

accordance with the Australian Auditing Standards will always detect a material 

misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are 

considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected 

to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of this financial report.  

As part of an audit in accordance with the Australian Auditing Standards, I exercise 

professional judgement and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit. I also:  

• identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial report, whether 

due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, 

and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for my 

opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is 

higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, 

intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. 

• obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design 

audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose 

of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the health service’s internal control 

• evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of 

accounting estimates and related disclosures made by the Board 

• conclude on the appropriateness of the Board’s use of the going concern basis of 

accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material 

uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on 

the health service’s ability to continue as a going concern. If I conclude that a 

material uncertainty exists, I am required to draw attention in my auditor’s report to 

the related disclosures in the financial report or, if such disclosures are inadequate, 

to modify my opinion. My conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up 

to the date of my auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause 

the health service to cease to continue as a going concern.  

• evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial report, 

including the disclosures, and whether the financial report represents the underlying 

transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.  

I communicate with the Board regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and 

timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in 

internal control that I identify during my audit. 

 

 

 
 

MELBOURNE 

5 September 2018 

Ron Mak 

as delegate for the Auditor-General of Victoria 

 

 
 

 
 



KYNETON DISTRICT HEALTH SERVICE

COMPREHENSIVE OPERATING STATEMENT

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2018

Note 2018 2017

$ $

Revenue from Operating Activities 2.1 13,370,322 12,262,465

Revenue from Non-Operating Activities 2.1 49,984 34,579

Employee Expenses 3.1 (8,212,042) (7,659,084)

Non-Salary Labour Costs 3.1 (1,099,042) (877,902)

Supplies and Consumables 3.1 (1,382,314) (957,435)

Other Expenses 3.1 (2,259,159) (2,076,433)

Net Result Before Capital and Specific Items 467,749 726,190

Capital Purpose Income 2.1 463,764 470,276

Expenditure for Capital Purpose 3.1 (15,234) 17,195

Depreciation and Amortisation 4.3 (1,262,071) (1,072,867)

Specific Expenses 3.3 0 (22,597)

Finance Costs 3.4 (12,727) (15,452)

Net Result After Capital and Specific Items (358,519) 102,745

Other economic flows included in net result

Net Gain/(Loss) on Non-Financial Assets 2.1 (6,804) 4,558

Revaluation of Long Service Leave 3.5(b) 6,830 (34,383)

Total other economic flows included in net result 26 (29,825)

NET RESULT FOR THE YEAR (358,493) 72,920

Other Comprehensive Income

Items that will not be reclassified to net result

Changes in Physical Asset Revaluation Surplus 8.1(a) 519,950 481,920

TOTAL OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME 519,950 481,920

COMPREHENSIVE RESULT 161,457 554,840

This Statement should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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KYNETON DISTRICT HEALTH SERVICE

BALANCE SHEET

AS AT 30 JUNE 2018

Note 2018 2017

$ $

Current Assets

Cash and Cash Equivalents 6.2 3,335,648 2,285,890

Receivables 5.1 597,321 540,869

Investments and Other Financial Assets 4.1 182,019 172,859

Inventories 5.2 8,710 9,727

Other Assets 5.4 252,429 251,805

Total Current Assets 4,376,127 3,261,150

Non-Current Assets

Receivables 5.1 255,526 183,745

Property, Plant and Equipment 4.2 23,726,985 23,857,906

Intangible Assets 4.4 29,820 0

Total Non-Current Assets 24,012,331 24,041,651

TOTAL ASSETS 28,388,458 27,302,801

Current Liabilities

Payables 5.5 1,040,844 874,697

Borrowings 6.1 270,000 270,000

Provisions 3.5 2,117,268 1,892,748

Other Current Liabilities 5.3 882,645 30,699

Total Current Liabilities 4,310,757 3,068,144

Non-Current Liabilities

Borrowings 6.1 316,783 574,057

Provisions 3.5 284,947 346,086

Total Non-Current Liabilities 601,730 920,143

TOTAL LIABILITIES 4,912,487 3,988,287

NET ASSETS 23,475,971 23,314,514

EQUITY

Property, Plant and Equipment Revaluation Surplus 8.1(a) 12,339,014 11,819,064

Contributed Capital 8.1(b) 9,578,427 9,578,427

Accumulated Surpluses/(Deficits) 8.1(c) 1,558,530 1,917,023

TOTAL EQUITY 8.1(c) 23,475,971 23,314,514

Contingent Assets and Contingent Liabilities 7.2

This Statement should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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KYNETON DISTRICT HEALTH SERVICE

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2018

Property, Plant Contribution Accumulated Total

and Equipment by Owners Surpluses/

Revaluation (Deficits)

Surplus

Note $ $ $ $

Balance at 1 July 2016 11,337,144 9,578,427 1,844,103 22,759,674

Net result for the year 0 0 72,920 72,920

Other comprehensive income for the year 481,920 0 0 481,920

Balance at 30 June 2017 8.1 11,819,064 9,578,427 1,917,023 23,314,514

Net result for the year 0 0 (358,493) (358,493)

Other comprehensive income for the year 519,950 0 0 519,950

Balance at 30 June 2018 8.1 12,339,014 9,578,427 1,558,530 23,475,971

This Statement should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.



KYNETON DISTRICT HEALTH SERVICE

CASH FLOW STATEMENT  

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2018

Note 2018 2017

$ $

Inflows / Inflows /

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES (Outflows) (Outflows)

Operating Grants from Government 11,466,316 9,681,934

Capital Grants from Government 445,364 443,070

Patient and Resident Fees Received 963,843 819,406

Donations and Bequests Received 18,400 27,206

GST Received from/(paid to) ATO (43,297) (21,987)

Interest Received 49,984 34,579

Other Receipts 1,436,150 1,076,845

Total Receipts 14,336,760 12,061,053

Employee Expenses Paid (8,048,661) (7,575,329)

Non Salary Labour Costs (1,099,042) (877,902)

Payments for Supplies and Consumables (1,381,297) (957,940)

Other Payments (1,820,637) (1,533,497)

Total Payments (12,349,637) (10,944,668)

NET CASH FLOW FROM / (USED IN) OPERATING ACTIVITIES 8.2 1,987,123 1,116,385

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Purchase of Non-Financial Assets (594,453) (152,069)

Purchase Intangibles (34,400) 0

Proceeds from Sale of Non-Financial Assets 455 6,363

NET CASH FLOW FROM / (USED IN) INVESTING ACTIVITIES (628,398) (145,706)

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Repayment of Borrowings (270,000) (270,000)

NET CASH FLOW FROM / (USED IN) FINANCING ACTIVITIES (270,000) (270,000)

NET INCREASE/ (DECREASE) IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS HELD 1,088,725 700,679

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT BEGINNING OF FINANCIAL YEAR 2,199,486 1,498,807

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END OF FINANCIAL YEAR 6.2 3,288,211 2,199,486

This Statement should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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Kyneton District Health Service

Notes to the Financial Statements

30 June 2018

BASIS OF PRESENTATION

The financial statements are prepared in accordance with Australian Accounting Standards and relevant FRDs.

These financial statements are presented in Australian dollars and the historical cost convention is used unless a different measurement 

basis is specifically disclosed in the note associated with the item measured on a different basis.

The accrual basis of accounting has been applied in preparing these financial statements whereby assets, liabilities, equity, 

income and expenses are recognised in the reporting period to which they relate, regardless of when cash is received or paid.

Consistent with the requirements of AASB 1004 Contributions, contributions by owners (that is contributed capital and its repayment) 

are treated as equity transactions and, therefore, do not form part of the income and expenses of the hospital.

Additions to net assets which have been designated as contributions by owners are recognised as contributed capital. Other transfers 

that are in the nature of contributions to or distributions by owners have also been designated as contributions by owners. 

Transfers of net assets arising from administrative restructurings are treated as distributions to or contribution by owners. Transfer of net 

liabilities arising from administrative restructurings are treated as distribution to owners.

Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised and also future periods that are affected 

by the revision. Judgements and assumptions made by management in applying the application of AASB that have significant effect on 

the financial statements and estimates are disclosed in the notes under the heading: 'Significant judgement or estimates'.

NOTE 1 :  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

These annual financial statements represent the audited general purpose financial statements for Kyneton District Health Service 

(ABN 60 500 832 938)  for the period ended 30 June 2018.  The purpose of the report is to provide users with information about the  

Health Services'  stewardship of resources entrusted to it.

(a) Statement of compliance

These financial statements are general purpose financial statements which have been prepared in accordance with the Financial 

Management Act  1994, and applicable AASs, which include interpretations issued by the Australian Accounting Standards

Board (AASB).  They are presented in a manner consistent with the requirements of AASB 101 Presentation of Financial Statements.

The financial statements also comply with relevant Financial Reporting Directions (FRDs) issued by the Department of Treasury and

Finance, and relevant Standing Directions (SDs) authorised by the Minister for Finance.

The Health Service is a not-for profit entity and therefore applies the additional AUS paragraphs applicable to "not-for-profit" Health

Services under the AAS's.

The annual financial statements were authorised for issue by the Board of Kyneton District Health Service on 4 September, 2018.

(b)  Reporting entity

      The financial statements includes all the controlled activities of Kyneton District Health Service.  

Its principal address is: 

7-25 Caroline Chisholm Drive

Kyneton, Victoria, 3444

A description of the nature of Kyneton District Health Service operations and its principal activities is included in the report of operations, which 

does not form part of these financial statements.
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Kyneton District Health Service

Notes to the Financial Statements

30 June 2018

NOTE 1 :  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(c) Basis of accounting preparation and measurement

Accounting policies are selected and applied in a manner which ensures that the resulting financial information satisfies the concepts of

relevance and reliability, thereby ensuring that the substance of the underlying transactions or other events is reported.

The accounting policies set out below have been applied in preparing the financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2018, and the

comparative information presented in these financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2017.

The financial statements are prepared on a going concern basis.

These financial statements are presented in Australian Dollars, the functional and presentation currency of the Health Service.

All amounts shown in the financial statements have been rounded to the nearest dollar, unless otherwise stated.

Minor discrepancies in tables between totals and sum of components are due to rounding.

The Health Service operates on a fund accounting basis and maintains three funds: Operating, Specific Purpose and Capital

Funds.

The financial statements, except for cash flow information, have been prepared using the accrual basis of accounting.

Under the accrual basis, items are recognised as assets, liabilities, equity, income or expenses when they satisfy the 

definitions and recognition criteria for those items, that is they are recognised in the reporting period to which they relate,

regardless of when cash is received or paid.

Judgements, estimates and assumptions are required to be made about the carrying values of assets and liabilities that are not readily 

apparent from other sources. The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. The estimates and

associated assumptions are based on professional judgements derived from historical experience and various experience and various

other factors that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances.  Actual results may differ from these estimates.

Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised and also in future periods 

that are affected by the revision. Judgements and assumptions made by management in the application of AASBs that have 

significant effects on the financial statements and estimates relate to:

•   The fair value of land, buildings and plant and equipment (refer to Note 4.2 Property, Plant and Equipment);

•   Superannuation expense (refer to Note 3.6 Superannuation); 

•   Employee benefit provisions are based on likely tenure of existing staff, patterns of leave claims, future salary movements 

    and future discount rates (refer to Note 3.5 Employee Benefits in the Balance Sheet); and

•   Managed investment funds classified at level 2 of the fair value hierarchy. 

Goods and Services Tax (GST)

Income, expenses and assets are recognised net of the amount of associated GST, unless the GST incurred is not recoverable 

from the Australian Taxation Office (ATO). In this case the GST payable is recognised as part of the cost of acquisition 

of the asset or as part of the expense.

Receivables and payables are stated inclusive of the amount of GST receivable or payable. The net amount of GST 

recoverable from, or payable to, the ATO is included with other receivables or payables in the Balance Sheet. 

Cash flows are presented on a gross basis. The GST components of cash flows arising from investing or financing activities

which are recoverable from, or payable to the ATO, are presented as operating cash flow.

Commitments and contingent assets and liabilities are presented on a gross basis.

(d) Principles of Consolidation

Intersegment Transactions

Transactions between segments within Kyneton District Health Service have been eliminated to reflect the extent of Kyneton District 

Health Service's operations as a group.
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Kyneton District Health Service

Notes to the Financial Statements

30 June 2018

NOTE 1 :  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(e) Jointly Controlled Operation

Joint control is the contractually agreed sharing of control of an arrangement, which exists only when decisions about the 

relevant activities require the unanimous consent of the parties sharing control.

In respect of any interest in joint operations, Kyneton District Health Service recognises in the financial statements:

•   its assets, including its share of any assets held jointly; 

•   any liabilities including its share of liabilities that it had incurred; 

•   its revenue from the sale of its share of the output from the joint operation;

•   its share of the revenue from the sale of the output by the operation; and

•   its expenses, including its share of any expenses incurred jointly.

Kyneton District Health Service is a Member of the Southwest Alliance of Rural Health Joint Venture and retains 

joint control over the arrangement, which it has classified as a joint operation (refer to Note 8.10)
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Kyneton District Health Service

Notes to the Financial Statements 

30 June 2018

NOTE 2: FUNDING DELIVERY OF OUR SERVICES

Kyneton District Health Service's overall objective is to provide quality health services that support and enhance the 

wellbeing of all Victorians. Kyneton District Health Service is predominantly funded by accrual based grant funding for the

provision of outputs. The hospital also receives income from the supply of services.

Structure

2.1 Analysis of revenue by source
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Kyneton District Health Service

Notes to the Financial Statements 

30 June 2018

Note 2.1: ANALYSIS OF REVENUE BY SOURCE

Admitted Aged Other TOTAL

Patients Care

2018 2018 2018 2018

$ $ $ $

Government Grants 9,718,691 1,120,268 0 10,838,959

Loddon Mallee Rural Health Alliance 0 0 311,730 311,730

Indirect Contributions by Department of

Health and Human Services 82,970 0 0 82,970

Patient and Resident Fees 763,179 201,706 0 964,885

Commercial Activities and Specific Purpose Funds 0 0 342,066 342,066

Other Revenue from Operating Activities 556,108 273,604 0 829,712

Total Revenue from Operating Activities 11,120,948 1,595,578 653,796 13,370,322

Interest and Dividends 0 0 49,984 49,984

Total Revenue from Non-Operating Activities 0 0 49,984 49,984

Capital Purpose Income (Excluding Interest) 0 0 445,364 445,364

Net Gain/(Loss) on Disposal of Non-Financial Assets 0 0 (6,804) (6,804)

Capital Donations and Bequests Received 0 0 18,400 18,400

Total Capital Purpose Income 0 0 456,960 456,960

Total Revenue 11,120,948 1,595,578 1,160,740 13,877,266
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Kyneton District Health Service

Notes to the Financial Statements 

30 June 2018

Note 2.1: ANALYSIS OF REVENUE BY SOURCE (continued)

Admitted Aged Other TOTAL

Patients Care

2017 2017 2017 2017

$ $ $ $

Government Grants 8,742,274 939,660 0 9,681,934

Loddon Mallee Rural Health Alliance 0 0 295,328 295,328

Indirect Contributions by Department of

Health and Human Services 218,479 0 0 218,479

Patient and Resident Fees 708,404 222,357 0 930,761

Commercial Activities and Specific Purpose Funds 0 0 319,151 319,151

Other Revenue from Operating Activities 486,715 330,097 0 816,812

Total Revenue from Operating Activities 10,155,872 1,492,114 614,479 12,262,465

Interest and Dividends 0 0 34,579 34,579

Total Revenue from Non-Operating Activities 0 0 34,579 34,579

Capital Purpose Income (Excluding Interest) 0 0 443,070 443,070

Net Gain/(Loss) on Disposal of Non-Financial Assets 0 0 4,558 4,558

Capital Donations and Bequests Received 0 0 27,206 27,206

Total Capital Purpose Income 0 0 474,834 474,834

Total Revenue 10,155,872 1,492,114 1,123,892 12,771,878

The Department of Health and Human Services makes certain payments on behalf of the Health Service.

These amounts have been brought to account in determining the operating result for the year by recording them as revenue 

and expenses.

Revenue Recognition

Income is recognised in accordance with AASB 118 Revenue and is recognised as to the extent that it is probable that the 

economic benefits will flow to Kyneton District Health Service and the income can be reliably measured at fair value. Unearned 

income at reporting date is reported as income received in advance.

Amounts disclosed as revenue are, where applicable, net of returns, allowances and duties and taxes.

Government Grants and Other Transfers of Income (Other than Contributions by Owners)

In accordance with AASB 1004 Contributions, government grants and other transfers of income (other than contributions 

by owners) are recognised as income when the Health Service gains control of the underlying assets irrespective of whether 

conditions are imposed on the Health Service's use of the contributions.

Contributions are deferred as income in advance when the Health Service has a present obligation to repay them and the 

present obligation can be reliably measured.

Indirect Contributions from the Department of Health and Human Services

• Insurance is recognised as revenue following advice from the Department of Health and Human Services

• Long Service Leave (LSL) - Revenue is recognised upon finalisation of movements in LSL liability in line 

with the arrangements set out in the Metropolitan Health and Aged Care Services Division Hospital 

Circular 04/2017.

Patient and Resident Fees

Patient fees are recognised as revenue on an accrual basis.
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Kyneton District Health Service

Notes to the Financial Statements 

30 June 2018

Note 2.1: ANALYSIS OF REVENUE BY SOURCE (continued)

Private Practice Fees

Private Practice fees are recognised as revenue at the time invoices are raised.

Revenue from Commercial Activities

Revenue from commercial activities such as provision of meals to external users is recognised on an accrual basis.

Donations and Other Bequests

Donations and bequests are recognised as revenue when received.  If donations are for a special purpose, they may 

be appropriated to a surplus, such as specific restricted purpose surplus.

Interest Revenue

Interest revenue is recognised on a time proportionate basis that takes in account the effective yield of the financial asset.

Sale of Investments

The gain/loss on the sale of investments is recognised when the investment is realised.

Other Income

Other income includes non-property rental, dividends, forgiveness or liabilities and bad debt reversals.

Category Groups

Kyneton District Health Service has used the following category groups for reporting purposes for the current and previous 

financial years.

•  Admitted Patient Services (Admitted Patients) comprises all acute and subacute admitted patients services, where services 

are delivered in public hospitals.

•  Aged Care comprises a range of in home, specialist geriatric, residential care and community based programs and 

support services, such as Home and Community Care (HACC) that are targeted to older people, people with a disability, 

and their carers.

•  Other Services not reported elsewhere - (Other) comprises services not separately classified above, including: Public Health 

Services including laboratory testing, blood borne viruses / sexually transmitted infections clinical services, Kooris liaison officers, 

immunisation and screening services, drugs services including drug withdrawal, counselling and the needle and syringe program, 

Disability services including aids and equipment and flexible support packages to people with a disability, Community Care 

programs including sexual assault support, early parenting services, parenting assessment and skills development, and various 

support services. Health and Community Initiatives also falls in this category group.
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Kyneton District Health Service

Notes to the Financial Statements 

30 June 2018

NOTE 3: THE COST OF DELIVERING SERVICES

This section provides an account of the expenses incurred by the hospital in delivering services and outputs. In Note 2, the 

funds that enable the provision of services were disclosed and in this note the cost associated with provision of services are 

recorded. 

Structure

3.1 Analysis of expenses by source 

3.2 Analysis of expense by internally managed and restricted specific purpose funds

3.3 Specific expenses

3.4 Finance costs

3.5 Employee benefits in the balance sheet

3.6 Superannuation
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Kyneton District Health Service

Notes to the Financial Statements 

30 June 2018

Note 3.1: ANALYSIS OF EXPENSE BY SOURCE

Admitted Aged Other TOTAL

Patients Care

2018 2018 2018 2018

$ $ $ $

Employee Expenses 6,851,716 1,360,326 0 8,212,042

Other Operating Expenses

Non Salary Labour Costs 1,099,042 0 0 1,099,042

Supplies and Consumables 1,298,111 84,058 145 1,382,314

Other Expenses from Continuing Operations 2,148,908 41,244 69,007 2,259,159

Total Expenditure from Operating Activities 11,397,777 1,485,628 69,152 12,952,557

Finance Costs (refer Note 3.4) 0 0 12,727 12,727

Other Non-Operating Expenses

Specific Expenses (refer Note 3.3) 0 0 0 0

Revaluation of Long Service Leave 0 0 (6,830) (6,830)

Expenditure for Capital Purposes 0 0 15,234 15,234

Depreciation and Amortisation (refer Note 4.4) 0 0 1,262,071 1,262,071

Total Other Expenses 0 0 1,283,202 1,283,202

Total Expenses 11,397,777 1,485,628 1,352,354 14,235,759

Admitted Aged Other TOTAL

Patients Care

2017 2017 2017 2017

$ $ $ $

Employee Expenses 6,411,772 1,248,033 (721) 7,659,084

Other Operating Expenses

Non Salary Labour Costs 877,902 0 0 877,902

Supplies and Consumables 862,106 92,169 3,160 957,435

Other Expenses from Continuing Operations 1,942,180 55,668 78,585 2,076,433

Total Expenditure from Operating Activities 10,093,960 1,395,870 81,024 11,570,854

Finance Costs (refer Note 3.4) 0 0 15,452 15,452

Other Non-Operating Expenses

Specific Expenses (refer Note 3.3) 0 0 22,597 22,597

Revaluation of Long Service Leave 0 0 34,383 34,383

Expenditure for Capital Purposes 0 0 (17,195) (17,195)

Depreciation and Amortisation (refer Note 4.4) 0 0 1,072,867 1,072,867

Total Other Expenses 0 0 1,128,104 1,128,104

Total Expenses 10,093,960 1,395,870 1,209,128 12,698,958

Note 3.1 Expense Recognition

Expenses are recognised as they are incurred and reported in the financial year to which they relate.
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Kyneton District Health Service

Notes to the Financial Statements 

30 June 2018

Note 3.1: ANALYSIS OF EXPENSE BY SOURCE (continued)

Employee Expenses

Employee expenses include:

• Wages and salaries;

• Fringe benefits tax;

• Leave entitlements;

• Termination payments;

• Workcover premiums; and

• Superannuation expenses 

Grants and Other Transfers

These include transactions such as: grants, subsidies and personal benefit payments made in cash to individuals.

Other operating expenses

Other operating expenses generally represent the day-to-day running costs incurred in normal operations and include:

• Supplies and Consumables - Supplies and service costs which are recognised as an expense in the 

reporting period in which they are incurred. The carrying amounts of any inventories held for distribution 

are expensed when distributed.

• Fair value of assets, services and resources provided free of charge or for nominal consideration - 

Contributions of resources provided free of charge or for nominal consideration are recognised at 

control over them.

• Borrowing costs of qualifying assets, In accordance with the paragraphs of AASB 123 Borrowing Costs applicable

to not-for-profit public sector entities, the Health Services continues to recognise borrowing costs immediately as an

expense, to the extent that they are directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of a qualifying

asset.

Net Gain / (Loss) on Non-Financial Assets

Net gain / (loss) on non-financial assets and liabilities includes realised and unrealised gains and losses as follows:

• Revaluation gain/ (losses) of non-financial physical assets (Refer to Note 4.2 Property, Plant and Equipment)

• Net gain/(loss) on disposal of Non-Financial Assets

Any gain or loss on the disposal of non-financial assets is recognised at the date of disposal.

Net gain/ (loss) on financial instruments

Net gain/ (loss) on financial instruments includes:

• realised and unrealised gains and losses from revaluations of financial instruments at fair value;

• impairment and reversal of impairment for financial instruments at amortised cost refer to 

Note 4.1 Investments and other financial assets; and

• disposals of financial assets and derecognition of financial liabilities

Other gains/(losses) from other economic flows

Other gains/(losses) include:

• the revaluation of the present value of the long service leave liability due to changes in the bond rate movements,

inflation rate movements and the impact of changes in probability factors; and

• transfer of amounts from the reserves to accumulated surplus or net result due to disposal or derecognition or 

reclassification.

Derecognition of Financial Liabilities

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged, cancelled or expires.

Financial Guarantee

Payments that are contingent under financial guarantee contracts are recognised as a liability at the time the guarantee is issued. 

The liability is initially measured at fair value, and if there is a material increase in the likelihood that the guarantee may have to 

be exercised, then it is measured at the higher of the amount determined in accordance with AASB 137 Provisions, Contingent

Liabilities and Contingent Assets and the amount initially recognised less cumulative amortisation, where appropriate.

In the determination of fair value, consideration is given to factors including the overall capital management/prudential supervision 

framework in operation, the protection provided by the State Government by way of funding should the probability of 

default increase, probability of default by the guaranteed party and the likely loss to the Health Service in the event of default. 
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Kyneton District Health Service

Notes to the Financial Statements

30 June 2018

NOTE 3.2: ANALYSIS OF EXPENSES BY INTERNALLY MANAGED AND RESTRICTED SPECIFIC PURPOSE FUNDS 2018 2017

$ $

Commercial Activities

Provision of Accommodation 69,152 40,009

TOTAL COMMERCIAL ACTIVITIES 69,152 40,009

NOTE 3.3: SPECIFIC EXPENSES 2018 2017

$ $

Asset Stocktake Write-down 0 22,597

TOTAL SPECIFIC EXPENSES 0 22,597

NOTE 3.4: FINANCE COSTS 2018 2017

$ $

Discounts relating to Borrowings 12,727 15,452

TOTAL FINANCE COSTS 12,727 15,452

Finance costs are recognised as expenses in the period in which they are incurred. 

Finance costs include amortisation of discounts or premiums relating to borrowings.

NOTE 3.5: EMPLOYEE BENEFITS IN THE BALANCE SHEET 2018 2017

Current Provisions $ $

Employee Benefits (i)

Annual Leave

 - unconditional and expected to be settled wholly within 12 months (ii) 514,446 577,819

 - unconditional and expected to be settled wholly after 12 months (iii) 120,445 0

Long Service Leave 

 - unconditional and expected to be settled wholly within 12 months (ii) 147,884 156,595

 - unconditional and expected to be settled wholly after 12 months (iii) 974,083 843,356

Accrued Days Off 

 - unconditional and expected to be settled wholly within 12 months (ii) 16,503 12,673

 - unconditional and expected to be settled wholly after 12 months (iii) 0 0

Accrued Salaries & Wages 

 - unconditional and expected to be settled wholly within 12 months (ii) 118,740 101,405

 - unconditional and expected to be settled wholly after 12 months (iii) 0 0

1,892,101 1,691,848

Provisions related to employee benefit on-costs

 - unconditional and expected to be settled wholly within 12 months (ii) 123,375 112,769

 - unconditional and expected to be settled wholly after 12 months (iii) 101,792 88,131

225,167 200,900

Total Current Provisions 2,117,268 1,892,748

Non-Current Provisions

Employee Benefits (i) 257,987 313,342

Provisions related to employee benefit on-costs 26,960 32,744

Total Non-Current Provisions 284,947 346,086

Total Provisions 2,402,215 2,238,834
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Kyneton District Health Service

Notes to the Financial Statements

30 June 2018

NOTE 3.5: EMPLOYEE BENEFITS IN THE BALANCE SHEET (continued) 2018 2017

(a) Employee Benefits and Related On Costs $ $

Current Employee Benefits and Related On Costs

Annual Leave Entitlements 729,807 664,203

Accrued Wages and Salaries 130,020 110,103

Accrued Days Off 18,228 13,996

Unconditional LSL Entitlement 1,239,213 1,104,446

Total Current Employee Benefits 2,117,268 1,892,748

Non-Current Employee Benefits

Conditional Long Service Leave Entitlements (ii) 284,947 346,086

Total Employee Benefits 2,402,215 2,238,834

2018 2017

(b) Movements in Provisions $ $

Movement in Long Service Leave:

Balance at start of year 1,450,532 1,377,207

Provision made during the year

 - Revaluations (6,830) 34,383

 - Expense Recognising Employee Service 236,543 178,625

Settlement made during the year (156,085) (139,683)

Balance at end of year 1,524,160 1,450,532

Notes:

(i) Provisions for employee benefits consist of amounts for annual leave and long service leave accrued by employees, not including on-costs.

(ii) The amounts disclosed are nominal amounts

(iii) The amounts disclosed are discounted to present values

Employee Benefit Recognition

Provision is made for benefits accruing to employees in respect of wages and salaries, annual leave and long service leave for services rendered 

to the reporting date as an expense during the period the services are delivered.

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Health Service has a present obligation, the future sacrifice of economic benefits is probable, and the 

amount of the provision can be measured reliably.

The amount recognised as a liability is the best estimate of the consideration required to settle the present obligation at reporting date, taking into 

account the risks and uncertainties surrounding the obligation. 

Employee Benefits

This provision arises for benefits accruing to employees in respect of wages and salaries, annual leave and long

service leave for services rendered to the reporting date.

Salaries and Wages, Annual Leave and Accrued Days Off

Liabilities for wages and salaries, annual leave and accrued days off are all recognised in the provision for employee benefits as

‘current liabilities’, because the health service does not have an unconditional right to defer settlements of these liabilities.

Depending on the expectation of the timing of settlement, liabilities for wages and salaries, annual leave and accrued days off are measured at:

•  Undiscounted value – if the health service expects to wholly settle within 12 months; or

•  Present value – if the health service does not expect to wholly settle within 12 months.

Long Service Leave (LSL)

Liability for LSL is recognised in the provision for employee benefits.

Unconditional LSL is disclosed in the notes to the financial statements as a current liability, even where the health service does 

not expect to settle the liability within 12 months because it will not have the unconditional right to defer the settlement 

of the entitlement should an employee take leave within 12 months. An unconditional right arises after a qualifying period.

The components of this current LSL liability are measured at:

• Undiscounted value – if the health service expects to wholly settle within 12 months; and

• Present value – if the health service does not expect to wholly settle within 12 months.
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Kyneton District Health Service

Notes to the Financial Statements

30 June 2018

NOTE 3.5: EMPLOYEE BENEFITS IN THE BALANCE SHEET (continued)

Conditional LSL is disclosed as a non-current liability.  Any gain or loss following revaluation of the present value of non-current LSL

liability is recognised as a transaction, except to the extent that a gain or loss arises due to changes in estimations e.g. bond rate

movements, inflation rate movements and changes in probability factors which are then recognised as other economic flows.

Termination Benefits

Termination benefits are payable when employment is terminated before the normal retirement date or when an employee decides

 to accept an offer of benefits in exchange for the termination of employment.

On-Costs

Provisions for on-costs, such as payroll tax, workers compensation, superannuation are recognised separately from the provision for

employee benefits.

NOTE 3.6: SUPERANNUATION

Fund

2018 2017 2018 2017

$ $ $ $

Defined Contribution Plans: First State 459,774 478,647 19,585 0

HESTA 141,143 136,465 5,487 0

Other 16,567 17,609 619 0

Total 617,484       632,721                  25,691 0

Employees of the Health Service are entitled to receive superannuation benefits and the Health Service contributes to defined contribution plans.

Defined contribution superannuation plans

In relation to defined contributions (i.e. accumulation) superannuation plans, the associated expense is simply the employer contributions

that are paid or payable in respect of employees who are members of these plans during the reporting period. Contributions to defined

defined contribution superannuation plans are expensed when incurred.

Kyneton District Health Service does not recognise any defined benefit liability in respect of the plan(s) because the entity has no legal or 

constructive obligation to pay future benefits relating to its employees; its only obligation is to pay superannuation contributions as they fall due. The 

Department of Treasury and Finance discloses the State's defined benefits liabilities in its disclosure for administered items.  

However superannuation contributions paid or payable for the reporting period are included as part of employee benefits in the 

comprehensive operating statement of the Health Service. 

The name, details and amounts that have been expensed in relation to the major employee superannuation funds and contributions made

by Kyneton District Health Service are disclosed above.

Paid Contributions for Outstanding Contributions

the Year at Year End
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Kyneton District Health Service

Notes to the Financial Statements

30 June 2018

NOTE 4: KEY ASSETS TO SUPPORT SERVICE DELIVERY

The hospital controls infrastructure and other investments that are utilised in fulfilling its objectives and conducting its activities.

They represent the key resources that have been entrusted to the hospital to be utilised for delivery of those outputs.

Structure

4.1 Investments and other financial assets

4.2 Property, plant and equipment

4.3 Depreciation 

4.4 Intangible Assets
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Kyneton District Health Service

Notes to the Financial Statements

30 June 2018

NOTE 4.1: INVESTMENTS AND OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS

2018 2017 2018 2017

CURRENT $ $ $ $

Loans and Receivables 

Term Deposit

Aust. Dollar Term Deposits > 3 Months (i) 182,019 172,859 182,019 172,859

TOTAL INVESTMENTS AND OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS 182,019 172,859 182,019 172,859

Represented by:

Investments - Loddon Mallee Rural Health Alliance 182,019 172,859 182,019 172,859

TOTAL INVESTMENTS AND OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS 182,019 172,859 182,019 172,859

(i) Term deposits under 'investments and other financial assets' class only include term deposits with maturity greater than 90 days.

(a) Ageing analysis of other financial assets

Please refer to Note 7.1 for the ageing analysis of other financial assets.

(b) Nature and extent of risk arising from other financial assets

Please refer to Note 7.1 for the nature and extent of credit risk arising from other financial assets.

Note 4.1 Investment Recognition

Investments are recognised and derecognised on trade date where purchase or sale of an investment is under a contract whose terms require

delivery of the investment within the timeframe established by the market concerned, and are initially measured at fair value, net of transaction costs. 

Investments are classified as available-for-sale financial assets.

Kyneton District Health Service classifies its other financial assets between current and non-current assets based on the Board of Management’s

intention at balance date with respect to the timing of disposal of each asset.  The Health Service assesses at each balance sheet date whether

a financial asset or group of financial assets is impaired.

Kyneton District Health Service investments must comply with Standing Direction 3.7.2 - Treasury and Investment Risk Management. 

All financial assets, except those measured at fair value through the Comprehensive Operating Statement are subject to annual review for impairment.

Derecognition of financial assets

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a group of similar financial assets) is derecognised when:

• the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired; or

• the Health Service retains the right to receive cash flows from the asset, but has assumed an obligation to pay them in full

without material delay to a third party under a 'pass through' arrangement; or

• the Health Service has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset and either:

    (a) has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset; or

    (b) has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has transferred control 

         of the asset.

Where the Health Service has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards or transferred control, the 

asset is recognised to the extent of the Health Service's continuing involvement in the asset.

Impairment of financial assets

At the end of each reporting period, the Health Service assesses whether there is objective evidence that a financial asset or group of 

financial assets is impaired. All financial instrument assets, except those measured at fair value through the Comprehensive Income Statement,

are subject to annual review for impairment.

Where the fair value of an investment in an equity instrument at balance date has reduced by 20 percent or more than its cost price or

where its fair value has been less than its cost price for a period of 12 or more months, the financial asset is treated as impaired.

In order to determine an appropriate fair value as at 30 June 2018 for its portfolio of financial assets, the Health Service used the market

value of investments held provided by the portfolio managers.

The above valuation process was used to quantify the level of impairment (if any) on the portfolio of financial assets as at year end.

Doubtful debts

Receivables are assessed for bad and doubtful debts on a regular basis. Those bad debts considered as written off by mutual consent 

are classified as a transaction expense. Bad debts not written off by mutual consent and the allowance for doubtful debts are classified 

as other economic flows in the net result. 

Total Operating Fund
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Kyneton District Health Service

Notes to the Financial Statements

30 June 2018

NOTE 4.2: PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

(a) Gross carrying amount and accumulated depreciation 2018 2017

$ $

Land

 - Land at Fair Value 4,233,869 3,713,920

 - Landscaping at Cost 66,179 66,179

Less Accumulated Depreciation 5,778 3,035

60,401 63,144

Total Land 4,294,270 3,777,064

Buildings

 - Buildings at Fair Value 15,362,000 15,362,000

Less Accumulated Depreciation 2,867,429 2,028,521

12,494,571 13,333,479

 - Buildings at Cost 6,402,094 6,276,253

Less Accumulated Depreciation 513,297 356,391

5,888,797 5,919,862

Total Buildings 18,383,368 19,253,341

Plant and Equipment 

 - Loddon Mallee Rural Health Alliance 52,359 31,846

Less Accumulated Depreciation 29,666 25,997

 - Plant and Equipment at Fair Value 2,273,755 1,863,818

Less Accumulated Depreciation 1,321,764 1,148,264

Total Plant and Equipment 974,684 721,403

Motor Vehicles 

 - Motor Vehicles at Fair Value 322,329 281,154

Less Accumulated Depreciation 247,666 175,056

Total Motor Vehicles 74,663 106,098

TOTAL 23,726,985 23,857,906
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Kyneton District Health Service

Notes to the Financial Statements

30 June 2018

NOTE 4.2: PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

(b) Reconciliation of the carrying amounts of each class of asset

Reconciliations of the carrying amounts of each class of asset at the beginning and end of the previous and current financial year is set out below.

Land Buildings Plant and Motor Total

Equipment Vehicles

$ $ $ $ $

Balance at 1 July 2016 3,278,828 20,086,421 824,242 129,366 24,318,857

Additions 18,151 0 96,753 37,165 152,069

Revaluation Increments 481,920 0 0 0 481,920

Loddon Mallee Rural Health Alliance 0 0 2,329 0 2,329

Disposals 0 0 0 (1,805) (1,805)

Stocktake Write-down 0 0 (22,597) 0 (22,597)

Depreciation and Amortisation (Note 4.3) (1,835) (833,080) (179,324) (58,628) (1,072,867)

Balance at 1 July 2017 3,777,064 19,253,341 721,403 106,098 23,857,906

Additions 0 125,841 427,437 41,175 594,453

Revaluation Increments 519,950 0 0 0 519,950

Loddon Mallee Rural Health Alliance 0 0 19,426 0 19,426

Disposals 0 0 (7,259) 0 (7,259)

Depreciation and Amortisation (Note 4.3) (2,744) (995,814) (186,323) (72,610) (1,257,491)

Balance at 30 June 2018 4,294,270 18,383,368 974,684 74,663 23,726,985

Land and Buildings Carried at Valuation

An independent valuation of the Health Service's land and buildings was performed by the Valuer-General Victoria  to determine the fair value

of the land and buildings. The valuation, which conforms to Australian Valuation Standards, was determined by reference to the amounts for which

assets could be exchanged between knowledgeable willing parties in an arm's length transaction. The valuation was based on independent

assessments. The effective date of the valuation is 30 June 2014.

In compliance with FRD 103F, in the year ended 30 June 2018, Kyneton District Health Service management conducted an annual 

assessment of the fair value of land and buildings and leased buildings. To facilitate this, management obtained from the Department of 

Treasury and Finance the Valuer General Victoria indices for the financial year ended 30 June 2018. 

The fair value of the land had been adjusted by a managerial revaluation in 2017.  The latest indicies required a further managerial revaluation in 2018.

The indexed value was then compared to individual assets written down book value as at 30 June 2018 to determine the change in their fair values.

The Department of Health and Human Services approved a managerial revaluation of the land asset class of $519,950 ($481,920 in 2017).

The effective date of the independent valuation was 30 June 2014.
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Kyneton District Health Service

Notes to the Financial Statements

30 June 2018

NOTE 4.2: PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Continued)

(c) Fair value measurement hierarchy for assets as at 30 June 2018

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 

Land at fair value

Specialised land 4,294,270 0 0 4,294,270

Total of land at fair value 4,294,270 0 0 4,294,270

Buildings at fair value

Specialised buildings 18,383,368 0 0 18,383,368

Total of building at fair value 18,383,368 0 0 18,383,368

Plant and equipment at fair value

Plant equipment and vehicles at fair value

- Vehicles 74,663 0 74,663 0

- Plant and equipment 974,684 0 0 974,684

Total of plant, equipment and vehicles at fair value 1,049,347 0 74,663 974,684

(c) Fair value measurement hierarchy for assets as at 30 June 2017

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 

Land at fair value

Specialised land 3,777,064 0 0 3,777,064

Total of land at fair value 3,777,064 0 0 3,777,064

Buildings at fair value

Specialised buildings 19,253,341 0 0 19,253,341

Total of building at fair value 19,253,341 0 0 19,253,341

Plant and equipment at fair value

Plant equipment and vehicles at fair value

- Vehicles 106,098 0 106,098 0

- Plant and equipment 721,403 0 0 721,403

Total of plant, equipment and vehicles at fair value 827,501 0 106,098 721,403

(i) Classified in accordance with the fair value hierarchy, see Note 1

(ii) Vehicles are categorised to Level 3 assets if the depreciated replacement cost is used in estimating the fair value. However

entities should consult with independent valuers in determining whether a market approach is appropriate for vehicles with an 

active resale market available. If yes, a Level 2 categorisation for such vehicles would be appropriate.

There have been no transfers between levels during the period.

Carrying amount 

as at 30 June 2018

Fair value measurement at end of reporting 

period using:

Carrying amount 

as at 30 June 2017

Fair value measurement at end of reporting 

period using:
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Kyneton District Health Service

Notes to the Financial Statements

30 June 2018

NOTE 4.2: PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Continued)

(d) Reconciliation of Level 3 fair value 

30 June 2018

Opening Balance 3,777,064 19,253,341 721,403

Purchases / (Sales) 0 125,841 439,604

Transfers In / (Out) of Level 3 0 0 0

Gains or losses recognised in net result

- Depreciation (2,744) (995,814) (186,323)

Subtotal (2,744) (995,814) (186,323)

Gains or losses recognised in other comprehensive income

 - Revaluation 519,950 0 0

Subtotal 519,950 0 0

Closing Balance 4,294,270 18,383,368 974,684

There have been no transfers between levels during the period.

Reconciliation of Level 3 fair value as at 30 June 2017

30 June 2017

Opening Balance 3,278,828 20,086,421 824,242

Purchases / (Sales) 18,151 0 76,485

Transfers In / (Out) of Level 3 0 0 0

Gains or losses recognised in net result

- Depreciation (1,835) (833,080) (179,324)

Subtotal 3,295,144 19,253,341 721,403

Items recognised in other comprehensive income

- Revaluation 481,920 0 0

Subtotal 481,920 0 0

Closing Balance 3,777,064 19,253,341 721,403

There have been no transfers between levels during the period.

(e) Fair Value Determination

Asset Class

- Land subject to restriction as to use Level 3 Market approach Community Service 

(Crown/Freehold) and/or sale Obligation Adjustments 

- Land in areas where there is not 

an active market 

Specialised Buildings (a) Specialised buildings with limited Level 3 Depreciated replacement - Cost per square metre 

alternative uses and/or substantial cost approach - Useful life 

customisation eg. Hospitals

Vehicles  If there is no active resale market Level 3 Market approach n.a.

Plant and equipment  Specialised items with limited Level 3 Depreciated replacement - Cost per square metre 

alternative uses and/or substantial cost approach - Useful life 

cutomisation 

(a) AASB 13 Fair Value Measurement provides an exemption for not for profit public sector entities from disclosing the sensitivity analysis 

relating to ‘unrealised gains/(losses) on non-financial assets’ if the assets are held primarily for their current service potential rather than 

to generate net cash inflows.

Plant and 

equipmentLand Buildings

Land Buildings

Plant and 

equipment

Specialised land 

Examples of types assets Expected fair value level Likely valuation approach 
Significant inputs (Level 3 

only)
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Kyneton District Health Service

Notes to the Financial Statements

30 June 2018

NOTE 4.2: PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Continued)

Initial Recognition

Items of property, plant and equipment are measured initially at cost and subsequently revalued at fair value less accumulated

depreciation and impairment loss. Where an asset is acquired for no or nominal cost, the cost is its fair value at the date of acquisition. 

Assets transferred as part of a merger/machinery of government change are transferred at their carrying amounts.

The cost of a leasehold improvement is capitalised as an asset and depreciated over the shorter of the remaining term of the lease 

or the estimated useful life of the improvements.

The initial cost for non-financial physical assets under finance lease (refer to Note 6.1) is measured at amounts equal to the fair value

of the leased asset or, if lower, the present value of the minimum lease payments, each determined at the inception of the lease.

Crown land is measured at fair value with regard to the property’s highest and best use after due consideration is made for any legal or 

physical restrictions imposed on the asset, public announcements or commitments made in relation to the intended use of the asset. 

Theoretical opportunities that may be available in relation to the asset(s) are not taken into account until it is virtually certain that any 

restrictions will no longer apply. Therefore, unless otherwise disclosed, the current use of these non-financial physical assets will be their 

highest and best uses.

Land and buildings are recognised initially at cost and subsequently measured at fair value less accumulated depreciation and 

accumulated impairment loss.

Subsequent Measure

Consistent with AASB 13 Fair Value Measurement, Kyneton District Health Service determines the policies and procedures for both

recurring property, plant and equipment fair value measurements, in accordance with the requirements of AASB 13 and the relevant FRDs. 

All property, plant and equipment for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are categorised within the

fair value hierarchy.

For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Health Service has determined classes of assets on the basis of the nature, characteristics and

risks of the asset and the level of the fair value hierarchy as explained above.

In addition, the Health Service determines whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing categorisation

(based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting period.

For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Health Service has determined classes of assets and liabilities on the basis of the nature,

characteristics and risks of the asset or liability and the level of the fair value hierarchy as explained above.

In addition, the Health Service determines whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing categorisation

(based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting period.

The Valuer-General Victoria (VGV) is Kyneton District Health Service’s independent valuation agency.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. 

Fair value measurement

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market 

participants at the measurement date. 

Consideration of highest and best use (HBU) for non-financial physical assets

Judgements about highest and best use must take into account the characteristics of the assets concerned, including restrictions on the use 

and disposal of assets arising from the asset’s physical nature and any applicable legislative/contractual arrangements.

In accordance with paragraph AASB 13.29, Health Services can assume the current use of a non-financial physical asset is its HBU 

unless market or other factors suggest that a different use by market participants would maximise the value of the asset.

Therefore, an assessment of the HBU will be required when the indicators are triggered within a reporting period, which suggest the 

market participants would have perceived an alternative use of an asset that can generate maximum value. Once identified, Health Services 

are required to engage with VGV or other independent valuers for formal HBU assessment.

These indicators, as a minimum, include:

External factors:

• Changed acts, regulations, local law or such instrument which affects or may affect the use or development of the asset;

• Changes in planning scheme, including zones, reservations, overlays that would affect or remove the restrictions imposed 

on the asset’s use from its past use;

• Evidence that suggest the current use of an asset is no longer core to requirements to deliver a Health Service’s service obligation;

• Evidence that suggests that the asset might be sold or demolished at reaching the late stage of an asset’s life cycle.
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30 June 2018

NOTE 4.2: PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Continued)

Valuation hierarchy

Health Services need to use valuation techniques that are appropriate for the circumstances and where there is sufficient data available 

to measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and minimising the use of unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are categorised within the fair value 

hierarchy.

Identifying unobservable inputs (level 3) fair value measurements

Level 3 fair value inputs are unobservable valuation inputs for an asset or liability. These inputs require significant judgement and 

assumptions in deriving fair value for both financial and non-financial assets.

Unobservable inputs shall be used to measure fair value to the extent that relevant observable inputs are not available, thereby allowing 

for situations in which there is little, if any, market activity for the asset or liability at the measurement date. However, the fair value 

measurement objective remains the same, i.e., an exit price at the measurement date from the perspective of a market participant that 

holds the asset or owes the liability. Therefore, unobservable inputs shall reflect the assumptions that market participants would use when 

pricing the asset or liability, including assumptions about risk.

Assumptions about risk include the inherent risk in a particular valuation technique used to measure fair value (such as a pricing risk 

model) and the risk inherent in the inputs to the valuation technique. A measurement that does not include an adjustment for risk would 

not represent a fair value measurement if market participants would include one when pricing the asset or liability i.e. it might be necessary 

to include a risk adjustment when there is significant measurement uncertainty. For example, when there has been a significant decrease 

in the volume or level of activity when compared with normal market activity for the asset or liability or similar assets or liabilities, and the 

Health Service has determined that the transaction price or quoted price does not represent fair value.

A Health Service shall develop unobservable inputs using the best information available in the circumstances, which might include the 

Health Service’s own data. In developing unobservable inputs, a Health Service may begin with its own data, but it shall adjust this data if 

reasonably available information indicates that other market participants would use different data or there is something particular to the 

Health Service that is not available to other market participants. A Health Service need not undertake exhaustive efforts to obtain information 

about other market participant assumptions. However, a Health Service shall take into account all information about market participant 

assumptions that is reasonably available. Unobservable inputs developed in the manner described above are considered market 

participant assumptions and meet the object of a fair value measurement.

Specialised land and specialised buildings

Specialised land includes Crown Land which is measured at fair value with regard to the property’s highest and best use after due 

consideration is made for any legal or physical restrictions imposed on the asset, public announcements or commitments made in relation 

to the intended use of the asset. Theoretical opportunities that may be available in relation to the assets are not taken into account until 

it is virtually certain that any restrictions will no longer apply. Therefore, unless otherwise disclosed, the current use of these non-financial 

physical assets will be their highest and best use.

During the reporting period, the Health Service held Crown Land. The nature of this asset means that there are certain limitations 

and restrictions imposed on its use and/or disposal that may impact their fair value.

The market approach is also used for specialised land and specialised buildings although is adjusted for the community service obligation 

(CSO) to reflect the specialised nature of the assets being valued. Specialised assets contain significant, unobservable adjustments;

 therefore these assets are classified as Level 3 under the market based direct comparison approach.

The CSO adjustment is a reflection of the valuer’s assessment of the impact of restrictions associated with an asset to the extent that is 

also equally applicable to market participants. This approach is in light of the highest and best use consideration required for fair value 

measurement, and takes into account the use of the asset that is physically possible, legally permissible and financially feasible. 

As adjustments of CSO are considered as significant unobservable inputs, specialised land would be classified as Level 3 assets. 

For the health services, the depreciated replacement cost method is used for the majority of specialised buildings, adjusting for the 

associated depreciation. As depreciation adjustments are considered as significant and unobservable inputs in nature, specialised

buildings are classified as Level 3 for fair value measurements.

An independent valuation of the Health Service’s specialised land and specialised buildings was performed by the Valuer-General Victoria. 

The valuation was performed using the market approach adjusted for CSO. The effective date of the valuation is 30 June 2014.

In 2018 a managerial valuation was carried out in accordance with FRD 103F to revalue land and buildings to its fair value. 

Vehicles

The Health Service acquires new vehicles and at times disposes of them before completion of their economic life. 

The process of acquisition, use and disposal in the market is managed by the Health Service who set relevant depreciation rates

during use to reflect the consumption of the vehicles. As a result, the fair value of vehicles does not differ materially from the 

carrying value (depreciated cost).
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NOTE 4.2: PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Continued)

Plant and equipment

Plant and equipment is held at carrying value (depreciated cost). When plant and equipment is specialised in use, such that it is rarely 

sold other than as part of a going concern, the depreciated replacement cost is used to estimate the fair value. Unless there is market 

evidence that current replacement costs are significantly different from the original acquisition cost, it is considered unlikely that 

depreciated replacement cost will be materially different from the existing carrying value. 

There were no changes in valuation techniques throughout the period to 30 June 2018. 

For all assets measured at fair value, the current use is considered the highest and best use.

Revaluations of Non-current Physical Assets

Non-Current physical assets are measured at fair value and are revalued in accordance with FRD 103F Non-current

physical assets.  This revaluation process normally occurs at least every five years, based upon the asset's Government

Purpose Classification  but may occur more frequently if fair value assessments indicate material changes in values. 

Independent valuers are used to conduct these scheduled revaluations and any interim revaluations are determined 

in accordance with the requirements of the FRDs. Revaluation increments or decrements arise from differences 

between an asset's carrying value and fair value.

Revaluation increments are recognised in 'other comprehensive income' and are credited directly to the asset revaluation surplus 

except that, to the extent that an increment reverses a revaluation decrement in respect of that same class of asset previously 

recognised as an expense in net result, the increment is recognised as income in the net result.

Revaluation decrements are recognised in 'other comprehensive income' to the extent that a credit balance exists in the asset 

revaluation surplus in respect of the same class of property, plant and equipment.

Revaluation increases and revaluation decreases relating to individual assets within an asset class are offset against one 

another within that class but are not offset in respect of assets in different classes.

Revaluation surplus is not transferred to accumulated funds on derecognition of the relevant asset.

In accordance with FRD 103F Kyneton District Health Service's non-current physical assets were assessed to determine 

whether revaluation of the non-current physical assets was required.  This assessment did not identify any significant movements 

that would require a revaluation.
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NOTE 4.3: DEPRECIATION AND AMORTISATION 2018 2017

$ $

Depreciation

Buildings 995,814 833,080

Plant and Equipment 183,741 174,412

Motor Vehicles 72,610 58,628

Landscaping 2,744 1,835

Loddon Mallee Rural Health Alliance 2,582 4,912

TOTAL DEPRECIATION 1,257,491 1,072,867

Amortisation

Intangible Assets 4,580 0

TOTAL AMORTISATION 4,580 0

TOTAL DEPRECIATION AND AMORTISATION 1,262,071 1,072,867

Depreciation

All infrastructure assets, buildings, plant and equipment and other non-financial physical assets that have finite useful lives

are depreciated (i.e. excludes land assets held for sale, and investment properties). Depreciation is generally calculated 

on a straight-line basis at rates that allocate the asset’s value, less any estimated residual value over its estimated useful life 

(refer AASB 116 Property, Plant and Equipment ). 

Amortisation

Amortisation is the systematic allocation of the depreciable amount of an asset over its useful life. If a Health Service has items such as 

patents, trademarks, computer software or development expenses that are being capitalised, these should be included under

‘Intangible Assets’ (refer AASB 138 Intangible Assets ) and amortised.

The following table indicates the expected useful lives of non current assets on which the depreciation charges are based.

2018 2017

Buildings

- Structure Shell Building Fabric 25 to 50 Years 25 to 50 Years

- Site Engineering Services and Central Plant 36 Years 36 Years

Central Plant

- Fit Out 20 Years 20 Years

-Trunk Reticulated Building Systems 10 to 22 Years 10 to 22 Years

Plant and Equipment 4 to 25 Years 4 to 25 Years

Medical Equipment 6 to 10 Years 6 to 10 Years

Motor Vehicles 4 to 10 Years 4 to 10 Years

Intangible Assets 3 to 5 years 3 to 5 years

As part of the buildings valuation, building values were separated into components and each component assessed for its useful

life which is represented above. 
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NOTE 4.4: INTANGIBLE ASSETS 2018 2017

$ $

Intangible Produced Software 34,400 0

Less Accumulated Amortisation 4,580 0

29,820 0

TOTAL INTANGIBLE ASSETS 29,820 0

Reconciliation of the carrying amounts of intangible assets at the beginning and end of the previous and current financial year:

Software Total

$ $

Balance at 1 July 2017 0 0

Additions 34,400 34,400

Amortisation (refer note 4.3) 4,580 4,580

Balance at 30 June 2018 29,820 29,820

Intangible assets represent identifiable non-monetary assets without physical substance such as computer software and car park recognition rights.

Intangible assets are initially recognised at cost.  Subsequently, intangible assets with finite useful lives are carried at cost less accumulated amortisation and accumulated 

impairment losses. Costs incurred subsequent to initial recognition are capitalised when it is expected that additional future economic benefits will flow to the Health Service.

Expenditure on research activates is recognised as an expense in the period on which it is incurred.
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NOTE 5: OTHER ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

This section sets out those assets and liabilities that arose from the hospital's operations.

Structure

5.1 Receivables

5.2 Inventories

5.3 Other liabilities

5.4 Prepayments and other assets

5.5 Payables
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NOTE 5.1: RECEIVABLES 2018 2017

CURRENT $ $

Contractual

Inter Hospital Debtors 182,369 69,403

Trade Debtors 88,897 110,041

Receivables - Loddon Mallee Rural Health Alliance 21,065 8,963

Patient Fees 134,226 133,184

Accrued Revenue 76,630 170,182

Less Allowance for Doubtful Debts

Patient Fees (38,455) (38,455)

464,732 453,318

Statutory

GST Receivable - Health Service 126,030 82,733

GST Receivable - Loddon Mallee Rural Health Alliance 6,559 4,818

132,589 87,551

TOTAL CURRENT RECEIVABLES 597,321 540,869

NON CURRENT

Statutory

Long Service Leave - Department of Health/Department of Health and Human Services 255,526 183,745

TOTAL NON-CURRENT RECEIVABLES 255,526 183,745

TOTAL RECEIVABLES 852,847 724,614

(a) Movement in allowance for doubtful debts

Balance at beginning of year 38,455 34,205

Amounts written off during the year 0 0

Amounts recovered during the year 0 0

Increase/(decrease) in allowance recognised in net result 0 4,250

Balance at end of year 38,455 38,455

(b) Ageing analysis of receivables

Please refer to Note 7.1 for the ageing analysis of receivables.

(c) Nature and extent of risk arising from receivables

Please refer to Note 7.1 for the nature and extent of credit risk arising from receivables.

Receivables consist of:

 - Contractual receivables, which includes of mainly debtors in relation to goods and services, loans to third parties, accrued investment

income, and finance lease receivables.

 - Statutory receivables, which includes predominantly amounts owing from the Victorian Government and Goods and Services Tax 

("GST") input tax credits recoverable.

Receivables that are contractual are classified as financial instruments and categorised as loans and receivables.  Statutory

receivables are recognised and measured similarly to contractual receivables (except for impairment), but are not

classified as financial instruments because they do not arise from a contract.

Receivables are recognised initially at fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the effective interest rate method,  

less any accumulated impairment.

In assessing impairment of statutory (non-contractual) financial assets, which are not financial instruments, professional judgement is 

applied in assessing materiality using estimates, averages and other computational methods in accordance with AASB 136 Impairment of Assets.

Trade debtors are carried at nominal amounts due and are due for settlement within 30 days from the date of recognition.  Collectability of

debts is reviewed on an ongoing basis, and debts which are known to be uncollectible are written off.  A provision for doubtful debts is

recognised when there is objective evidence that the debts may not be collected and bad debts are written off when identified.
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NOTE 5.2: INVENTORIES 2018 2017

$ $

Pharmaceuticals - at cost 8,710 9,727

TOTAL INVENTORIES 8,710 9,727

Inventories include goods and other property held either for sale, consumption or for distribution at no or nominal

cost in the ordinary course of business operations.  It excludes depreciable assets.

Inventories held for distribution are measured at cost, adjusted for any loss of service potential.  All

other inventories, including land held for sale, are measured at the lower of cost and net realisable value.

Inventories acquired for no cost or nominal considerations are measured at current replacement cost at the date of acquisition.

The bases used in assessing loss of service potential for inventories held for distribution include current replacement

cost and technical or functional obsolescence.  Technical obsolescence occurs when an item still functions for

some or all of the tasks it was originally acquired to do, but no longer matches existing technologies.  Functional

obsolescence occurs when an item no longer functions the way it did when it was first acquired.

Cost is assigned to land for sale (undeveloped, under development and developed) and to other high value, low volume inventory 
items on a specific identification of cost basis.

Cost for all other inventory is measured on the basis of weighted average cost.

NOTE 5.3: OTHER LIABILITIES 2018 2017

$ $

CURRENT

Monies Held in Trust*

   - Staff Salary Packaging 7,962 17,658

Income Received in Advance 874,683 13,041

TOTAL OTHER LIABILITIES 882,645 30,699

* Total Monies Held in Trust

Represented by the following assets:

Cash Assets 7,962 17,658

TOTAL 7,962 17,658

NOTE 5.4: PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER NON-FINANCIAL ASSETS 2018 2017

$ $

Prepayments - Health Service 230,650 226,825

Prepayments - Loddon Mallee Rural Health Alliance 21,779 24,980

TOTAL OTHER ASSETS 252,429 251,805

Other non-financial assets include prepayments which represent payments in advance of receipt of goods or services or that part of 

expenditure made in one accounting period covering a term extending beyond that period.
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NOTE 5.5: PAYABLES 2018 2017

$ $

CURRENT

Contractual

Trade Creditors - Health Service 464,196 609,687

Payables - Loddon Mallee Rural Health Alliance 61,901 48,565

Accrued Audit Fees 11,500 6,297

Other Accrued Expenditure 474,890 210,148

1,012,487 874,697

Statutory

Department of Health and Human Services 28,357 0

28,357 0

TOTAL PAYABLES 1,040,844 874,697

Payables consist of:

• contractual payables, classified as financial instruments and measured at amortised cost.  Accounts payable represents

liabilities for goods and services provided to the Department prior to the end of the financial year that are unpaid; and

• statutory payables, that are recognised and measured similarly to contractual payables, but are not classified as

financial instruments and not included in the category of financial liabilities at amortised cost, because they do not arise

from contracts.

Note 5.5 (a): Maturity analysis of financial liabilities as at 30 June

The following table discloses the contractual maturity analysis for the Health Service’s financial liabilities. For interest rates applicable 

to each class of liability refer to individual notes to the financial statements.

Carrying Nominal Less than 1 - 3 3 Months 1 - 5

Amount Amount 1 Month Months - 1 Year Years

2018 $ $ $ $ $ $

Financial Liabilities

At Amortised Cost

Payables 1,012,487 1,012,487 904,225 2,213 106,049 0

Other Financial Liabilities (i) 7,962 7,962 7,962 0 0 0

Borrowings 586,783 586,783 0 0 270,000 316,783

Total Financial Liabilities 1,607,232 1,607,232 912,187 2,213 376,049 316,783

2017

Financial Liabilities

At Amortised Cost

Payables 874,697 874,697 828,252 42,221 4,224 0

Other Financial Liabilities (i) 17,658 17,658 17,658 0 0 0

Borrowings 844,057 844,057 0 0 270,000 574,057

Total Financial Liabilities 1,736,412 1,736,412 845,910 42,221 274,224 574,057

(i) Ageing analysis of financial liabilities excludes the types of statutory financial liabilities (i.e. GST payable).

Maturity Dates
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NOTE 6: HOW WE FINANCE OUR OPERATIONS

This section provides information on the sources of finance utilised by the hospital during its operations, along with interest expenses 

(the cost of borrowings) and other information related to financing activities of the hospital.

This section includes disclosures of balances that are financial instruments (such as borrowings and cash balances). Note: 7.1 

provides additional, specific financial instrument disclosures.

Structure

6.1 Borrowings

6.2 Cash and cash equivalents
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NOTE 6.1: BORROWINGS 2018 2017

$ $

CURRENT

Department of Health and Human Services - Loan 270,000 270,000

Total Current 270,000 270,000

NON CURRENT

Department of Health and Human Services - Loan 316,783 574,057

Total Non Current 316,783 574,057

TOTAL BORROWINGS 586,783 844,057

(a) Maturity analysis of borrowings

Please refer to Note 5.5 for the maturity analysis of borrowings.

(b) Defaults and breaches

During the current and prior year, there were no defaults and breaches of any of the borrowings. 

Finance leases

Entity as lessee

Finance leases are recognised as assets and liabilities at amounts equal to the fair value of the lease property or, if lower, the present

value of the minimum lease payment, each determined at the inception of the lease. The lease asset is accounted for as a non-financial

physical asset and is depreciated over the shorter of the estimated useful life of the asset or the term of the lease.

Minimum lease payments are apportioned between reduction of the outstanding lease liability, and the periodic finance expense which

is calculated using the interest rate implicit in the lease, and charged directly to the comprehensive operating statement.

Borrowings

All borrowings are initially recognised at fair value of the consideration received, less directly attributable transaction costs. The 

measurement basis subsequent to initial recognition depends on whether the Health Service has categorised its borrowings as either, 

financial liabilities designated at fair value through profit or loss, or financial liabilities at amortised cost. Any difference between the initial 

recognised amount and the redemption value is recognised in net result over the period of the borrowings using the effective interest 

method.

NOTE 6.2: CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

For the purposes of the cash flow statement, cash assets includes cash on hand and 

in banks, and short-term deposits which are readily convertible to cash on hand, and are 

subject to an insignificant risk of change in value, net of outstanding bank overdrafts. 2018 2017

$ $

Cash on Hand 250 370

Cash at Bank 3,335,398 2,285,520

TOTAL CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 3,335,648 2,285,890

Represented by:

Cash for Health Service Operations (as per Cash Flow Statement) 3,288,211 2,199,486

Cash for Loddon Mallee Rural Health Alliance 39,475 68,746

Cash for Monies Held in Trust

 - Cash at Bank 7,962 17,658

TOTAL CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 3,335,648 2,285,890

Cash and cash equivalents recognised on the balance sheet comprise cash on hand and cash at bank, deposits at call and highly

liquid investments (with an original maturity of three months or less), which are held for the purpose of meeting short term cash 

commitments rather than for investment purposes, which are readily convertible to known amounts of cash and are subject to insignificant

risk of changes in value.

For cash flow statement presentation purposes, cash and cash equivalents include bank overdrafts, which are included as liabilities 

on the balance sheet.
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NOTE 7: RISKS, CONTINGENCIES & VALUATION UNCERTAINTIES

The hospital is exposed to risk from its activities and outside factors. In addition, it is often necessary to make judgements and estimates 

associated with recognition and measurement of items in the financial statements. This section sets out financial instrument specific 

information, (including exposures to financial risks) as well as those items that are contingent in nature or require a higher level of 

judgement to be applied, which for the hospital is related mainly to fair value determination.

Structure

7.1 Financial instruments 

7.2 Contingent assets and contingent liabilities

35



Kyneton District Health Service

Notes to the Financial Statements

30 June 2018

NOTE 7.1: FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Financial Risk Management Objectives and Policies

Financial instruments arise out of contractual agreements that give rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability or equity 

instrument of another entity. Due to the nature of Kyneton District Health Service's activities, certain financial assets and financial liabilities 

arise under statute rather than a contract. Such financial assets and financial liabilities do not meet the definition of financial instruments 

in AASB 132 Financial Instruments: Presentation.  

(a) Categorisation of financial instruments

Contractual 

financial assets - 

loans and 

receivables

Contractual 

financial 

liabilities at 

amortised cost Total

2018 $ $ $

Contractual Financial Assets 

Cash and Cash Equivalents 3,335,648 0 3,335,648

Loans and Receivables 646,751 0 646,751

Total Financial Assets (i) 3,982,399 0 3,982,399

Financial Liabilities 

At Amortised Cost

 - Payables 0 1,020,449 1,020,449

 - Borrowings 0 586,783 586,783

Total Financial Liabilities(ii) 0 1,607,232 1,607,232

Contractual 

financial assets - 

loans and 

receivables

Contractual 

financial 

liabilities at 

amortised cost Total

2017 $ $ $

Contractual Financial Assets 

Cash and Cash Equivalents 2,285,890 0 2,285,890

Loans and Receivables 626,177 0 626,177

Total Financial Assets (i) 2,912,067 0 2,912,067

Financial Liabilities 

At Amortised Cost

 - Payables 0 892,355 892,355

 - Borrowings 0 844,057 844,057

Total Financial Liabilities(ii) 0 1,736,412 1,736,412

(i) The carrying amount excludes statutory receivables (i.e. GST Receivable and DHHS Receivable) and statutory payables (i.e. Revenue

in advance and DHHS payable).
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NOTE 7.1: FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(b) Net holding gain/(loss) on financial instruments by category

Total interest 

income / 

(expense) Total

$ $ $ $ $

2018

Financial Assets

Cash and Cash Equivalents(i) 0 49,984 0 0 49,984

Total Financial Assets 0 49,984 0 0 49,984

Financial Liabilities

Borrowings (12,727) 0 0 0 (12,727)

Total Financial Liabilities (12,727) 0 0 0 (12,727)

2017

Financial Assets

Cash and Cash Equivalents(i) 0 34,579 0 0 34,579

Total Financial Assets 0 34,579 0 0 34,579

Financial Liabilities

Borrowings (15,452) 0 0 0 (15,452)

Total Financial Liabilities (15,452) 0 0 0 (15,452)

(i) For cash and cash equivalents, loans or receivables and available-for-sale financial assets, the net gain or loss is calculated by taking the interest

 revenue, plus or minus foreign exchange gains or losses arising from revaluation of the financial assets, and minus any impairment recognised in

the net result.

(ii) For financial liabilities measured at amortised cost, the net gain or loss is calculated by taking the interest expense, plus or minus foreign exchange

gains or losses arising from the revaluation of financial liabilities measured at amortised cost.

Categories of financial instruments 

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are financial instrument assets with fixed and determinable payments that are not quoted on an active market.

These assets are initially recognised at fair value plus any directly attributable transaction costs.  Subsequent to initial measurement, loans

and receivables are measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method, less any impairment.

Loans and receivables category includes cash and deposits (refer to Note 6.2), term deposits with maturity greater than three months,

trade receivables, loans and other receivables, but not statutory receivables.

Financial Liabilities at Amortised Cost

Initially recognised on the date they are originated. They are initially measured at fair value plus any directly attributable transaction costs. 

Subsequent to initial recognition, these financial instruments are measured at amortised cost with any difference between the initial recognised

amount and the redemption value being recognised in profit and loss over the period of the interest bearing liability, using the effective 

interest rate method. The Health Service recognises the following liabilities in this category:

- payables (excluding statutory payables);

- borrowings (including finance lease liabilities).

Derecognition of financial assets

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a group of similar financial assets) is derecognised when: 

- the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired; or

- the Health Service retains the right to receive cash flows from the asset, but has assumed an obligation to pay them 

  in full without material delay to a third party under a ‘pass through’ arrangement; or

- the Health Service has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset and either:

- has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset; or

- has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has transferred

  control of the asset.

Where the Health Service has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards or transferred control, the asset 

is recognised to the extent of the Health Service’s continuing involvement in the asset.

Fee income / 

(expense)

Net holding 

gain/(loss)

Impairment 

loss
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NOTE 7.1: FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Impairment of financial assets

At the end of each reporting period, the Health Service assesses whether there is objective evidence that a financial asset or group of 

financial assets is impaired. All financial instrument assets, except those measured at fair value through profit or loss, are subject to 

annual review for impairment.

The allowance is the difference between the financial asset’s carrying amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows, 

discounted at the effective interest rate. In assessing impairment of statutory (non-contractual) financial assets, which are not financial 

instruments, professional judgement is applied in assessing materiality using estimates, averages and other computational methods in 

accordance with AASB 136 Impairment of Assets.

Reclassification of financial instruments

Subsequent to initial recognition and under rare circumstances, non-derivative financial instruments assets that have not been designated 

at fair value through profit or loss upon recognition, may be reclassified out of the fair value through profit or loss category, if they are no 

longer held for the purpose of selling or repurchasing in the near term.

Financial instrument assets that meet the definition of loans and receivables may be reclassified out of the fair value through profit and loss 

category into the loans and receivables category, where they would have met the definition of loans and receivables had they not been 

required to be classified as fair value through profit and loss. In these cases, the financial instrument assets may be reclassified out of the 

fair value through profit and loss category, if there is the intention and ability to hold them for the foreseeable future or until maturity.

Available-for sale financial instrument assets that meet the definition of loans and receivables may be classified into the loans and 

receivables category if there is the intention and ability to hold them for the foreseeable future or until maturity.

Derecognition of financial liabilities

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged, cancelled or expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing 

liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as a derecognition of the original liability and the 

recognition of a new liability. The difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognised as an ‘other economic flow’ in the 

comprehensive operating statement.

NOTE 7.2: CONTINGENT ASSETS AND CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

Kyneton District Health Service has no known contingent assets or contingent liabilities at the date of this report (2017: nil).

Contingent assets and contingent liabilities are not recognised in the balance sheet, but are disclosed by way of note and, if quantifiable,

are measured at nominal value. Contingent assets and contingent liabilities are presented inclusive of GST receivable or payable
respectively.
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NOTE 8: OTHER DISCLOSURES

This section includes additional material disclosures required by accounting standards or otherwise, for the understanding of this financial 

report.

Structure

8.1 Equity

8.2 Reconciliation of net result for the year to net cash inflow/(outflow) from operating activities

8.3 Responsible persons disclosures

8.4 Executive officer disclosures

8.5 Related parties

8.6 Remuneration of auditors

8.7 AASBs issued that are not yet effective

8.8 Events occurring after the balance sheet date

8.9 Jointly controlled operations

8.10 Alternative presentation of comprehensive operating statement
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NOTE 8.1: EQUITY 2018 2017

$ $

(a)  Surpluses

Property, Plant & Equipment Revaluation Surplus (i)

Balance at the beginning of the reporting period

 - Land 3,155,730 2,673,810

 - Buildings 8,597,877 8,597,877

 - Plant and Equipment 65,457 65,457

Revaluation Increment/(Decrements)

 - Land 519,950 481,920

Balance at the end of the reporting period* 12,339,014 11,819,064

* Represented by: 

 - Land 3,675,680 3,155,730

 - Buildings 8,597,877 8,597,877

 - Plant and Equipment 65,457 65,457

12,339,014 11,819,064

(i) The property, plant and equipment asset revaluation surplus arises on the revaluation of property, plant and equipment.

(b)  Contributed Capital

Balance at the beginning of the reporting period 9,578,427 9,146,092

Capital Contribution received from Victorian Government 0 432,335

Balance at the end of the reporting period 9,578,427 9,578,427

(c)  Accumulated Surpluses/(Deficits)

Balance at the beginning of the reporting period 1,917,023 1,844,103

Net Result for the Year (358,493) 72,920

Balance at the end of the reporting period 1,558,530 1,917,023

Total Equity at end of financial year 23,475,971 23,314,514

Contributed Capital

Consistent with Australian Accounting Interpretation 1038 Contributions by Owners Made to Wholly-Owned Public Sector Entities and

FRD 119A Contributions by Owners , appropriations for additions to the net asset base have been designated as contributed capital.  Other

transfers that are in the nature of contributions or distributions, that have been designated as contributed capital are also treated as

contributed capital.

Transfers of net assets arising from administrative restructurings are treated as contributions by owners. Transfers of net liabilities arising 

from administrative restructures are to go through the comprehensive operating statement.

Property, Plant and Equipment Revaluation Surplus

The asset revaluation surplus is used to record increments and decrements on the revaluation of non-current physical assets.
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NOTE 8.2:   RECONCILIATION OF NET RESULT FOR THE YEAR TO NET CASH 

  INFLOW / (OUTFLOW) FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES 2018 2017

$ $

NET RESULT FOR THE PERIOD (358,493) 72,920

Non-Cash Movements

Depreciation and Amortisation 1,259,489 1,067,955

Share of Net Result from Joint Ventures 5,961 (17,642)

Asset Stocktake Write-down 0 22,597

Movements included in Investing and Financing Activities

Net Unrealised (Gain)/Loss on Disposal of Non Financial Physical Assets 6,804 (4,558)

DHHS Loan Discount 12,727 15,452

Movements in Assets and Liabilities

Change in Operating Assets and Liabilities

     (Increase)/Decrease in Receivables (114,391) (140,083)

     (Increase)/Decrease in Inventory 1,017 (505)

     (Increase)/Decrease in Prepayments (3,825) (9,616)

     Increase/(Decrease) in Payables 152,811 115,625

     Increase/(Decrease) in Provisions 163,381 83,755

     Increase/(Decrease) in Other Liabilities 861,642 (89,515)

NET CASH INFLOW / (OUTFLOW) FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES 1,987,123 1,116,385

41



Kyneton District Health Service

Notes to the Financial Statements

30 June 2018

NOTE 8.3: RESPONSIBLE PERSON DISCLOSURES

In accordance with the Ministerial Directions issued by the Minister for Finance under the Financial Management Act 1994 , the following disclosures

are made regarding responsible persons for the reporting period.

Responsible Ministers:

The Honourable Jill Hennessy, Minister for Health, Minister for Ambulance Services

The Honourable Martin Foley, Minister for Housing, Disability and Ageing, Minister for Mental Health

Governing Boards

Emeritus Professor Peter Matthews (Chair)

Mr Gerald Ashman (Deputy Chair)

Mr Steven Wlazly (Treasurer)

Ms Jayne Howley

Ms Rhyl Gould

Dr Marcus Kennedy

Mr Michael Wildenauer

Ms Danielle Romanes

Ms Ann Jorgensen

Ms Bronwyn Malignaggi

Mr Robert Rothnie

Ms Felicity Topp

Accountable Officers

Maree Cuddihy

Remuneration of Responsible Persons

The number of Responsible Persons are shown in their relevant income bands:

2018 2017

Income Band No. No.

$0 - $9,999 12 11

$220,000 - $229,000 0 1

$280,000 - $289,000 1 0

Total Numbers 13 12

Total remuneration received or due and receivable by Responsible Persons from the reporting entitiy amounted to: 280,904 220,061

Amounts relating to Responsible Ministers are reported in the financial statements of the Department of Premier and Cabinet.

For information regarding related party transactions of ministers, the register of members' interests is publicly available from:

www.parliament.vic.gov.au/publications/register of interests.

01/07/2017 - 30/06/2018

01/07/2017 - 30/06/2018

01/07/2017 - 30/06/2018

01/07/2017 - 30/06/2018

01/07/2017 - 30/06/2018

01/07/2017 - 30/06/2018

Consol'd

01/07/2017 - 30/06/2018

01/07/2017 - 30/06/2018

01/07/2017 - 30/06/2018

Period

01/07/2017 - 30/06/2018

01/07/2017 - 30/06/2018

01/07/2017 - 30/06/2018

01/07/2017 - 30/06/2018

01/07/2017 - 30/06/2018

01/07/2017 - 30/06/2018
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NOTE 8.4: EXECUTIVE OFFICER DISCLOSURES

Remuneration of executives

The number of executive officers, other than Ministers and Accountable Officers, and their total remuneration during the reporting period are shown

in the table below.  Total annualised employee equivalent provides a measure of full time equivalent executive officers over the reporting period.

Remuneration comprises employee benefits in all forms of consideration paid, payable or provided in exchange for services rendered, and is

disclosed in the following categories.

Short-term employee benefits include amounts such as wages, salaries, annual leave or sick leave that are usually paid or payable on a regular

basis, as well as non-monetary benefits such as allowances and free or subsidised goods or services.

Post-employment benefits include pensions and other retirement benefits paid or payable on a discrete basis when employment has ceased.

Other long-term benefits include long service leave, other long-service benefit or deferred compensation.

Termination benefits include termination of employment payments, such as severance packages.

Share-based payments are cash or other assets paid or payable as agreed between the health service and the employee, provided

specific vesting conditions, if any, are met.

Remuneration of Executive Officers

2018

$

Short-term employee benefits 416,481

Post-employment benefits 37,071

Other long-term benefits 9,411

Termination benefits 0

Share-based payments 0

Total Remuneration (i) 462,963

Total Number of Executives 3

Total Annualised Employee Equivalent (AEE) (ii) 2.32

Notes:

(i)  The total number of executive officers includes persons who meet the definition of Key Management Personnel (KMP) of the entity under

      AASB 124 Related Party Disclosures and are also reported within the related parties note disclosure (Note 8.6).

(ii)  Annualised employee equivalent is based on the time fraction worked over the reporting period.  This is calculated as the total number of days the 

      employee is engaged to work during the week by the total number of full-time working days per week (this is generally five full working days

      per week).

Total Remuneration
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NOTE 8.5: RELATED PARTIES

The hospital is a wholly owned and controlled entity of the State of Victoria. Related parties of the hospital include:

• all key management personnel and their close family members;

• all cabinet ministers and their close family members; and

• Jointly Controlled Operation - A member of the Loddon Mallee Rural Health Alliance; and

• all hospitals and public sector entities that are controlled and consolidated into the whole of state consolidated financial statements.

KMPs are those people with the authority and responsibility for planning, directing and controlling the activities of the Health Service and its

controlled entities, directly or indirectly.

The Board of Directors and the Executive Directors of Kyneton District Health Service and it's controlled entities are deemed to be KMPs.

Entity KMPs Position Title 

Kyneton District Health Service Maree Cuddihy Chief Executive Officer

Kyneton District Health Service Karen Laing Director of Nursing, Quality and Community Engagement

Kyneton District Health Service Brenda Rooney Director of Corporate Services 

Kyneton District Health Service Peter Sloan Director of Medical Services

The compensation detailed below excludes the salaries and benefits the Portfolio Ministers receive. The Minister’s remuneration and allowances 

is set by the Parliamentary Salaries and Superannuation Act 1968,  and is reported within the Department of Parliamentary Services’ Financial Report.

(i)Total remuneration paid to KMPs employed as a contractor during the reporting period through accounts payable has been reported 

under short-term employee benefits. 

(ii)KMPs are also reported in Note 8.4 Responsible Persons or Note 8.5 Remuneration of Executives. 

Significant transactions with government-related entities

Kyneton District Health received funding from the Department of Health and Human Services of $10,883,804 (2017: $9,639,869).

Kyneton District Health made payments to Austin Health for Pathology Services of $105,000 (2017: Nil).

Expenses incurred by the Health Service in delivering services and outputs are in accordance with Health Purchasing Victoria requirements.

Goods and services including procurement, diagnostics, patient meals and multi-site operational support are provided by other Victorian Health 

Service Providers on commercial terms.

Professional medical indemnity insurance and other insurance products are obtained from a Victorian Public Financial Corporation.

Treasury Risk Management Directions require the Health Service to hold cash (in excess of working capital) and investments, and source

all borrowings from Victorian Public Financial Corporations.

Transactions with Key Management Personnel and Other Related Parties

Given the breadth and depth of State government activities, related parties transact with the Victorian public sector in a manner consistent 

with other members of the public e.g. stamp duty and other government fees and charges. Further employment of processes within the 

Victorian public sector occur on terms and conditions consistent with the Public Administration  Act 2004 and Codes of Conduct and Standards 

issued by the Victorian Public Sector Commission. Procurement processes occur on terms and conditions consistent with the Victorian 

Government Procurement Board requirements. 

Outside of normal citizen type transactions with the Department of Health and Human Services, all other related party transactions that involved

KMPs and their close family members have been entered into on an arm's length basis. Transactions are disclosed when they are considered 

material to the users of the financial report in making and evaluation decisions about the allocation of scare resources.

Key Management Personnel Position Title

Maree Cuddihy Chief Executive Officer

Share based payments 0

Total (ii) 280,904

Post-employment benefits 23,130

Other long-term benefits 5,620

Termination benefits 0

COMPENSATION

2018

$

Short term employee benefits (i) 252,154
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NOTE 8.6: REMUNERATION OF AUDITORS

2018 2017

$ $

Victorian Auditor-General's Office

Audit or review of financial statement 14,500 14,300

Total 14,500 14,300
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NOTE 8.7: AASBs ISSUED THAT ARE NOT YET EFFECTIVE

Certain new Australian accounting standards and interpretations have been published that are not mandatory for 30 

June 2018 reporting period.  DTF assesses the impact of all these new standards and advises the Health Service of their 

applicability and early adoption where applicable.     

 As at 30 June 2018, the following standards and interpretations had been issued by the AASB but were not yet effective.

They become effective for the first financial statements for reporting periods commencing after the stated operative dates

as detailed in the table below.  Kyneton District Health has not and does not intend to adopt these standards early.

Topic Key Requirements Effective date Impact on financial statements

1-Jan-18 The assessment has indicated there will be no 

significant impact for the public sector.

1-Jan-18 The changes in revenue recognition requirements 

in AASB 15 may result in changes to the timing 

and amount of revenue recorded in the financial 

statements.  The standard will also require 

additional disclosures on service revenue and 

contract modifications.

01/01/2018 except amendments to 

AASB 9 (Dec 2009) and AASB 9 

(Dec 2010) apply from 1 Jan 2018

The assessment has indicated there will be no 

significant impact for the public sector.

AASB 2014-5 Amendments 

to Australian Accounting 

Standards arising from 

AASB 15

Amends the measurement of trade receivables and the 

recognition of dividends as follows: 

 - Trade receivables that do not have a significant 

financing component, are to be measured at their 

transaction price at initial recognition.

 - Dividends are recognised in the profit and loss only 

when: 

* the entity's right to receive payment of the dividend is 

established;

* it is probable the economic benefits associated with the 

dividend will flow to the entity; and

* the amount can be measured reliably.

AASB 2014‑7 

Amendments to Australian 

Accounting Standards 

arising from AASB 9

Amends various AAS's to incorporate the consequential 

amendments arising from the issuance of AASB 9.

AASB 15 Revenue from 

Contracts with Customers

The core principle of AASB 15 requires an entity to 

recognise revenue when the entity satisfies a 

performance obligation by transferring a promised good 

or service to a customer.  Note that amending standard 

AASB 2015-8 Amendments to Australian Accounting 

Standards - Effective Date of AASB 15  has deferred the 

effective date of AASB 15 to annual reporting periods 

beginning on or after 1 January 2018, instead of 1 

January 2017.

AASB 9 Financial 

Instruments

The key changes introduced by AASB 9 include 

simplified requirements for the classification and 

measurement of financial assets, a new hedge 

accounting model and a revised impairment loss model 

to recognise expected impairment losses earlier, as 

opposed to the current approach that recognises 

impairment only when incurred.

1-Jan-18 The assessment has identified the amendments 

are likely to result in earlier recognition of 

impairment losses and at more regular intervals.                             

The initial application of AASB 9 is not expected 

to significantly impact the financial position 

however there will be a change to the way 

financial instruments are classified and new 

disclosure requirements.

AASB 2014‑1 

Amendments to Australian 

Accounting Standards [Part 

E Financial Instruments]

Amends various AASs to reflect the AASB’s decision to 

defer the mandatory application date of AASB 9 to 

annual reporting periods beginning on or after 1 January 

2018, and to amend reduced disclosure requirements.

1-Jan-18 This amending standard will defer the application 

period of AASB 9 to the 2018-19 reporting period 

in accordance with the transition requirements.
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NOTE 8.7: AASBs ISSUED THAT ARE NOT YET EFFECTIVE (Continued)

Topic Key Requirements Effective date Impact on financial statements

AASB 2015-8 Amendments 

to Australian Accounting 

Standards - Effective Date 

of AASB 15

This Standard defers the mandatory effective date of 

AASB 15 from 1 January 2017 to 1 January 2018

1-Jan-18 The amending standard will defer the application 

period of AASB 15 for for-profit entities to the 

2018-19 reporting period in accordance with the 

transition requirements.

AASB 2016-3 Amendments 

to Australian Accounting 

Standards - Clarifications 

to AASB 15

This Standard amends AASB 15 to clarify the 

requirements on identifying performance obligations, 

principal versus agent considerations and the timing of 

recognising revenue from granting a licence.  The 

amendments require:

 - A promise to transfer to a customer a good or service 

that is 'distinct' to be recognised as a separate 

performance obligation;

 - For items purchased online, the entity is a principal if it 

obtains control of the good or service prior to transferring 

to the customer; and

 - For licences identified as being distinct from other 

goods or services in a contract, entities need to 

determine whether the licence transfers to the customer 

over time (right to use) or at a point in time (right to 

access).

1-Jan-18 The assessment has indicated there will be no 

significant impact for the public sector, other than 

the impact identified for AASB 15 above.

AASB 2016-7 Amendments 

to Australian Accounting 

Standards - Deferral of 

AASB 15 for Not-for-Profit-

Entities

This Standard defers the mandatory effective date of 

AASB 15 for not-for-profit-entities from 1 January 2018 to 

1 January 2019.

1-Jan-19 The amending standard will defer the application 

period of AASB 15 for not-for-profit entities to the 

2019-20 reporting period.

AASB 2016-8 Amendments 

to Australian Accounting 

Standards - Australian 

Implementation Guidance 

for Not-for-Profit-Entities

AASB 2016-8 inserts Australian requirements and 

authoritative implementation guidance for not-for-profit-

entities into AASB 9 and AASB 15.

This Standard amends AASB 9 and AASB 15 to include 

requirements to assist not-for-profit entities in applying 

the respective standards to particular transactions and 

events.

1-Jan-19 This standard clarifies the application of AASB 15 

and AASB 9 in a not-for-profit context.  The areas 

within these standards that are amended for not-

for-profit application include:

AASB 9

- Statutory receivables are recognised and 

measured similarly to financial assets.

AASB 15

 - The "customer" does not need to be the 

recipient of goods and/or services;

 - The "contract" could include an arrangement 

entered into under the direction of another party;

 - Contracts are enforceable if they are 

enforceable by legal or "equivalent means";

 - Contracts do not have to have commercial 

substance, only economic substance; and

 - Performance obligations need to be "sufficiently 

specific" to be able to apply AASB 15 to these 

transactions.

AASB 16  Leases The key changes introduced by AASB 16 include the 

recognition of operating leases (which are currently not 

recognised) on balance sheet.

1-Jan-19 The assessment has indicated that most 

operating leases, with the exception of short term 

and low value leases will come on to the balance 

sheet and will be recognised as right of use 

assets with a corresponding lease liability.  In the 

operating statement, the operating lease expense 

will be replaced by depreciation expense of the 

asset and an interest charge.

There will be no change for lessors as the 

classification of operating and finance leases 

remains unchanged.
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NOTE 8.7: AASBs ISSUED THAT ARE NOT YET EFFECTIVE (Continued)

The following accounting pronouncements are also issued but not effective for the 2017‑18 reporting period. At this stage, the preliminary 

assessment suggests they may have insignificant impacts on public sector reporting.

• AASB 2016-5 Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards – Classification and Measurement of Share‑based Payment Transactions

• AASB 2016-6 Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards – Applying AASB 9 Financial Instruments with AASB 4 Insurance Contracts

• AASB 2017-1 Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards – Transfers of Investment Property, Annual Improvements 2014-2016 

Cycle and Other Amendments

• AASB 2017-3 Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards – Clarifications to AASB 4

• AASB 2017-4 Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards – Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments

• AASB 2017-5 Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards – Effective Date of Amendments to AASB 10 and AASB 128 and

Editorial Corrections

• AASB 2017-6 Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards – Prepayment Features with Negative Compensation

• AASB 2017-7 Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards – Long-term Interests in Associates and Joint Ventures

• AASB 2018-1 Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards – Annual Improvements 2015 – 2017 Cycle

• AASB 2018-2 Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards – Plan Amendments, Curtailment or Settlement

NOTE 8.8: EVENTS OCCURRING AFTER THE BALANCE SHEET DATE

Assets, liabilities, income or expenses arise from past transactions or other past events. Where the transactions result from an agreement between 

the Health Service and other parties, the transactions are only recognised when the agreement is irrevocable at or before the end of the reporting period.

Adjustments are made to amounts recognised in the financial statements for events which occur between the end of the reporting period and the date 

when the financial statements are authorised for issue, where those events provide information about conditions which existed at the reporting date. 

Note disclosure is made about events between the end of the reporting period and the date the financial statements are authorised for issue where the 

events relate to conditions which arose after the end of the reporting period that are considered to be of material interest.

There have been no events subsequent to the reporting date which require further disclosure.

AASB 1058  Income of Not-

for-Profit-Entities

AASB 1058 standard will replace the majority of income 

recognition in relation to government grants and other 

types of contributions requirements relating to public 

sector not-for-profit entities, previously in AASB 1004 

Contributions.

The restructure of administrative arrangement will remain 

under AASB 1004 and will be restricted to government 

entities and contributions by owners in a public sector 

context.

AASB 1058 establishes principles for transactions that 

are not within the scope of AASB 15, where the 

consideration to acquire an asset is significantly less 

than fair value to enable not-for-profit entities to further 

their objective.

1-Jan-19 The current revenue recognition for grants is to 

recognise revenue up front upon receipt of the 

funds.

This may change under AASB 1058, as capital 

grants for the construction of assets will need to 

be deferred.  Income will be recognised over time, 

upon completion and satisfaction of performance 

obligations for assets being constructed, or 

income will be recognised at a point in time for 

acquisition of assets.

The revenue recognition for operating grants will 

need to be analysed to establish whether the 

requirements under other applicable standards 

need to be considered for recognition of liabilities 

(which will have the effect of deferring the income 

associated with these grants).  Only after that 

analysis would it be possible to conclude whether 

there are any changes to operating grants.

The impact on current revenue recognition of the 

changes is the phasing and timing of revenue 

recorded in the profit and loss statement.

Topic Key Requirements Effective date Impact on financial statements
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NOTE 8.9: JOINTLY CONTROLLED OPERATIONS

Name of Entity Principal Activity 2018 2017

% %

Loddon Mallee Rural Health Alliance Information Systems 4.03 3.87

Kyneton District Health Service's interest in assets employed in the above jointly controlled operations and assets is detailed below. The amounts are 

included in the financial statements under their respective asset categories:

2018 2017

Current Assets $ $

Cash and Cash Equivalents 39,475 68,746

Other Financial Assets 182,019 172,859

Receivables 23,606 12,086

Inventories 4,018 1,695

Prepayments 21,779 24,980

Total Current Assets 270,897 280,366

Non Current Assets

Property Plant and Equipment 22,693 5,849

Total Non Current Assets 22,693 5,849

Total Assets 293,590 286,215

Current Liabilities

Payables 53,340 42,890

Accrued Expenses 8,561 5,675

Total Current Liabilities 61,901 48,565

Total Liabilities 61,901 48,565

Net Assets 231,689 237,650

Kyneton District Health Service interest in revenues and expenses resulting from jointly controlled operations and assets is detailed below:

Revenue from Operating Activities 311,730 295,328

Expenditure (305,536) (266,616)

Surplus/(Deficit) before Capital & Depreciation 6,194 28,712

Non Operating Income/(Expense)

Capital Purpose (9,573) (6,158)

Depreciation (2,582) (4,912)

Total (12,155) (11,070)

Current Year Surplus/(Deficit) (5,961) 17,642

Contingent Liabilities and Capital Commitments

There are no known contingent assets or liabilities for Loddon Mallee Rural Health Alliance as at the date of this report.

Ownership Interest
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NOTE 8.10: ALTERNATIVE PRESENTATION OF COMPREHENSIVE OPERATING STATEMENT

2018 2017

Note $ $

Grants

Operating 2.1 10,921,929 9,900,413

Capital 2.1 445,364 151,140

Interest 2.1 49,984 34,579

Sales of goods and services 2.1 1,306,951 1,249,912

Other income 2.1 1,159,842 1,431,276

Revenue from Transactions 13,884,070 12,767,320

Employee expenses 3.1 8,212,042 7,659,084

Operating expenses

Supplies and consumables 3.1 1,382,314 957,435

Non salary labour costs 3.1 1,099,042 877,902

Other 3.1 2,259,159 2,076,433

Non-operating expenses

Specific expenses 3.3 0 22,597

Finance costs 3.4 12,727 15,452

Expenditure for capital purpose income 3.1 15,234 (17,195)         

Depreciation 4.4 1,262,071 1,072,867

Expenses from Transactions 14,242,589 12,664,575

Net Result From Transactions (358,519)          102,745

Other Economic Flows included in Net Result

Net gain/ (loss) on sale of non-financial assets 2.1 (6,804)              4,558

Other gains/ (losses) from other economic flows included in net result 3.5(b) 6,830 (34,383)         

Total Other Economic Flows included in Net Result 26 (29,825)         

NET RESULT FOR THE YEAR (358,493)          72,920

Items that may be reclassified subsequently to net result

Changes in physical asset revaluation surplus 519,950           481,920

Total Other Comprehensive Income 519,950           481,920

Comprehensive Result 161,457           554,840

This alternative presentation reflects the format required for reporting to the Department of Treasury and Finance, which differs to the 

disclosures of certain transactions, in particular revenue and expenses, in the hospital's annual report.
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